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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD #
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 : ‘

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1.  Background of RSSB .

RSSB law is governed by Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021] establishing Rwanda Social Security Board
effective from 16" February 2021. RSSB is categorised as a specialised organ and hss a legal
personality, administrative and financial autonomy. The mission of RSSB is to manage and promote
social security in Rwanda. The supervising authority of RSSB is the Ministry in charge of finance.

Responsibilities of RSSB

Responsibilities of RSSB are the following: '

1. To manage and promote social security in Rwanda (old age pension, survivorship benefits,
nonoccupational invalidity benefits, occupational hazards insurance, maternity leave benefits
scheme, health insurance and the long-term saving scheme);

To register' employers, employees, beneficiaries and voluntary contributors in social security

schemes under its management;
‘To monitor, ¢collect and manage social security contributions;

To conduct audit and inspection to ensure compliance with social security laws;

To pay social security benefits to heneficiaries;

To invest in Rwanda or abroad in accordance with relevant laws;

To contribute to the elaboration of social security policy;

To contribute in designing strategies for shelter, adequate nutrition, education, support due to loss of

jobs, provision for family and poverty reduction with intention to achieve social welfare;

To advise the Government on matters relating to social security;

0. To establish relations and collaborate with other regional or international institutions with similar
mission;

I1. To perform such other duties as may be assigned by Law.
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1.2,  Supervising authority of RSSB
RSSB is supervised by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning.

1.3. Management organs of RSSB
Management organs of RSSB are the following:

1) Board of Directors;

2) General management.

1.3:1 Board of Directors

The Board of directors is responsible for providing govemnance and oversight over the management of
RSSB. The composition of the Board of Directors as at 30" June 2022 was as follows:

NAMES _ Role on the board

Dr Christopher John WALES Chairperson : Resigned 18 August,2022
Mr, Marcel MUKESHIMANA . Vice Chairperson

Prof. Senait FISSEHA _ Member

Mr. Patrick MARARA SHYAKA Member

Mr. Kephers USENGE Member

Ms. Liliane BWAKIRA Member

Dr. Violette AYINGENEYE Member

Mr. Yves GATSIMBANYI 1 Member

Mr. Alain NDAYISHIMIYE Member
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1.3.2 General management

o The day to day running of RSSB is entrusted to the management team headed. by the Chief Executive
: Officer. He is assisted by a Deputy Chief Executive Officer. Officers who served on the General
Ny Directorate for the year ended 30" June 2022 were as follows:

o i NAMES POSITION Comments
e Mr. RUGEMANSHURO Regis ‘Chief Executive Officer Appoinied August 2022
" f Louisse KANYONGA _ Deputy Chief Executive Officer ' _Appointed August 2022
: ‘Mr. RUGEMANSHURO Regis Director General Up to August 2022
M. Philippe WATRIN Deputy Director General in charge of Fund | Served entire 2021/2022
. Management
; Dr. HITIMANA Regis Deputy Director General in.charge of Benefits Served entire 2021/2022
Mr.MURINDABIGWI Innocent Head of Finance and Contributions Department Served entire 2021/2022
- Mr. GASANA KWIZERA Eric | Head of Investment Department Served entire 2021/2022
: Mr. RULISA Alexis Head of CBHI Department Served entire 2021/2022
P Ms. MUIAWABEGA Yvonne Head of Pension  and Occupational Hazards | Served entire 202172022
W, I Dr. UMUTESI Lysette Head of Médical Department - Served entire 2021/2022
Mr. GATERA Augustin Head of Long Term Saving Scheme (Ejo Heza) Served entire 202172022

1.4.  Registered office

b Rwanda Social Security Board Headquarters
- : RSSB Building
| Plot 1003 Ubumwe Cell,
African Union Boulevard
— : Kiyowvu, Nyarugenge
PO BOX 250/6655 Kigali
Email : Info@rssb.rw
Foll Free line 4044

1.5, Auditors

- : The Auditor General
; Office of the Auditor General for State Finances
Y Kimihurura avenue du Lac Muhazi NEC, OAG, RRA Complex
IR B.P 1020,
Kigali- Rwanda

— 1.6. Bankers

§ Bank of Kigali Limited GT Bank (Rwanda) Limited
i POBox 175 P OBox 331
. Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda
: 1 & M Bank Rwanda Limited Access Bank (Rwanda) Limited
- : PO Box 354 P O Box 2059
Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda
o : National Bank of Rwanda Zigama Credit and Saving Society
. P O Box 531 P O Box 4772
; Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda
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1.6. Bankers — Continued

Bank Populaire du Rwanda Limited
P O Box 1348
Kigali, Rwanda

Ecobank Rwanda Limited
P O Box 3268
Kigali, Rwanda

KCB Rwanda Limited
P O Box 5620
Kigali, Rwanda

Unguka Bank Plc Rwanda
P.G BOX: 6417 Kigali,
Kigali, Rwanda

Letshego Rwanda Limited
P.O. Box 4062
Kigali, Rwanda

NCBA Bank Rwanda PLC

Kigali Heights, 8th Floor, Boulevard de
P'Umuganda

P O Box 6774,

Kigali, Rwanda

1.7 Investment advisors for Ejo Heza

Rwanda National Investment Trust Ltd (RNIT)

Development Bank of Rwanda Limited
P.O-Box-1341
Kigali, Rwanda

Cogebanque Limited
P.O. Box 5230
Kigali, Rwanda

Equity Bank Rwanda Limited
P O Box 494
Kigali, Rwanda

AB Bank Rwanda Limited
P.O Box 671,
Kigali, Rwanda

Bank of Africa
P.O. Box 265,
Kigali-Rwanda
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased submit their report together with the financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2022 which discloses the state of affairs of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB).

1) RSSB mandate

RSSB was established and is govemed by Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 which replaced Law N°
04/2015 of 11/03/2015, law modifying and complementing Law n® 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing
Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) and determining its mission, organization, and functioning.
RSSB continues to deliver on its mandate and serves members through the following six {6) schemes:

i) Pension

ii) Occupationat Hazards

iii) Medical

iv) CBHI

v) Maternity

vi) Ejo Heza

2) Owur Vision, Mission and Core Values

Our Vision

“To envision a comprehensive social security system that addresses the social security needs of all
Rwandans™

Our Mission
“To provide high quality social security services, ensure efficient collection, benefits provision,
management and investment of members® funds.”

Our Core (Corporate) Values
In trying to achieve our vision and mission, we serve with empathy, creativity, integrity, and
determination by following the ICARE principles:

Integrity
Collaboration
Accountability
Respect
Excellence

3) Principal activities )
Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board requires RSSB to manage

and promote social security in Rwanda and provide health insurance, as defined under two broad
categories below:

i) Social security: Government strategies aimed at providing to people living in Rwanda health
insurance and social protection from effects based on lack or reduction -of income due to the
following reasons:

Old age.

Death.

Disability.
Occupational hazards.
Sick leave,

Maternity leave.

Mmoo e

The strategies may also provide for shelter, adequate nutrition, education, support due to loss of job,
provision for family and poverty reduction with-intention to achieve social welfare.
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ii) Health insurance: This will cover:
b, Community-based health insurance scheme,

¢, Medical insurance scheme for public servants governed by general statutes governing public
servants, by special statutes or by law regulating labour in Rwanda; Employees in private
institutions affiliated to the compulsory health insurance scheme; and Pensioners who
contributed to'the health insurance scheme.

RSSB has responsibility to manage and promote:

i) Social security in Rwanda
* Qld age pension, survivorship benefits, nonoccupational invalidity benefits (Pension scheme)
® Qccupational hazards insurance (Occupational Hazards scheme)

= Maternity leave benefits scheme

=  Long-term saving scheme

ii} Health insurance
¥ Community-based health insurance scheme

®  Medical insurance scheme

4)  RSSB Autonomy

This is the first year of operations under the new legal framework for RSSB as a special organ. The
Directors have undertaken various reforms to facilitate RSSB to operate as an autonomous entity as
envisaged under Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board effective
from 16th February 2021. The Board has approved key policies, procedures and guidelines required to
operationalise Law Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board.

5) Strategic reforms

The Board continues to prioritise implementation of reforms defined in the RSSB 2020-2025 strategic
plan. Annual workplans and budgets as well as performance targets are all aligned to ensure focused
implementation of strategic plan activities to drive the reforms for transformation for RSSB.

6)  Governance and management of RSSB

Members of the Board and management team that served during the year is listed under section 1.3
above.

0] Restructuring and staffing

The Board completed the initial activities of the restructuring process and has created a new structure for
RSSB. The process of staffing commenced during the year. The Chief Executive Officer and Deputy
Chief Executive Officer were. appointed by Cabinet and approved by the Senate in August 2022. This
key activity will continue to ensure that the approved structure is filled with the required staff. '
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8)  Membership of RSSB schemes

Membership of the different schemes is és presented below:

-'i) Membership Pension and occupational Hazards schemes

a) Total members as at 30 June
Contributing members {b)
Pensioners (c)

Deferred members

b) Contributing members
At start of year

Joiners

Licss:

Retired (with pension or lumpsum)

Secessions (withdraw/deferred)

At end of year

c) Pensioners

At start of the year

Contributing members who retired with pension

Widows or widowers® pension and orphans becoming payable

Members who got lump sum

Less: Deaths and other secessionists
At end of year

ii) Membership of the Workers’ Medical Insurance

Active members

Affiliates
Drependents

Total

iii) Membership of the Community Based Health Insurance
Population coverage
Target population
Active contributors

Coverage rate

2022

678,713
47,776

' _1.266,311
1,992,800

683,653
158911
842,564

6,763
157,088
678,713

43,623
. 3,418
2,058

—3.345
52,444
4.668

47,776

2022
193,286
360,762

234,048

2022

12,295,600

10,693,869
87%

2021
683,653
43,623
1,186,850
1,914,126

587,576
216,675
804,251

4,904
115.694
683,653

41,483
3,294
1,783
1,610

48,170
4,547

—43.623

2021
163,973
335.875 -
492,848

2021
12,091,107
10,385,926

85.9%



RWANDA SQCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

iv) Membership of the Maternity Leave Benefits Scheme

2022
Contributors 673,418
Number of beneficiaries . 3,479
v) Membership of Ejo Heza Scheme

2022
Contributors 1,953,249
Number of beneficiaries 1,607
9} RSSB performance and financial position as at 30 June 2022

2022

Frw'millions

Performance during the year

‘Net contributions from members 140,861
Net investment income 106,620
Net increase in find assets 235,868
Financial position as at 30 June 2022 '

Total assets 1,776,413
Net assets 1,724,993

10) RSSB investent portfolio at 30 June 2022

2022
a
Frw'millions As %oge of total

assets
Investment properties and advances to contractors 246,020 14%
Equity investments 543,397 31%
Government securities, corporate bonds& papers, Deposits ;
and bank balances 217.147 2%
Tatal 1,707,064 6%

11) Actuarial valuation

2021

681,231
3,184

2021

1,135,148
104

2021
Frw'millions

119,344
19,457
121,813

1,535,925
1,489,347

2021
Frw'millions
236,210
457,370

774.536

L.468,116

The Directors have relied on the actuarial valuation done in 2020 for three schemes: Pension, Medical and
QOccupational Hazards. The Directors are of the view that circumstances and assumptions made have not
significantly changed to alter the conclusions and recommendations made in the 2020 actuarial valuation.

The Board will commission another actuarial valuation in accordance with company policy.
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12) Going concern

The Directors have made an assessment of RSSB’s ability to continue operating as a going concern.
Nothing has come to the Board’s attention to make it doubt RSSB’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board is implementing various reforms and initiatives to improve RSSB capacity,
operational efficiency, portfolio mix and return on investment. There is growth in contributions and total

assets and this trend is expected to continue and improve as more reforms take root. Accordingly, f

financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

The Dijrectors’ report was s gned by order of the Board and on behalf of the Board Dlrectors on
A \ L TR T T Y 1 ey S by:
Mr. Regis RUEEMANSHURO Mr. MOUKESHIMANA Marcel
Chief Executive Officer Ag Chairperson — Board of Directors

10
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2. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and. fair
view of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) comprising the statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2022, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in Member funds and
reserves and cash flows. for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as sct out on pages
17 to 168, in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards and .in the manner required
by the provisions of Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board
(RSSB).

The Directors’ responsibility includes the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in
the preparation of financial statements, overseeing and endorsing the designing, implementing
and maintenance of .internal control relevant to the. preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances, The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Board.

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) to
continue as going concern and have no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern in
the year ahead from the date of this statement.

In our opinion, the financial statements of Rwanda Social Security Board {RSSB) for the year ended
30 June 2022 give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of Rwanda Social Security
Board (RSSB). We further accept responsibility for maintenance of accounting records that may

> be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements and ensuring adequate system of internal

controls to safeguard assets of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB).

11




3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1. Statement of comprehensive income

Dealings with members

Conftributions

Benefits paid

Net additions from dealings with members

Returns on investments

Investment income

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Change in fair value of investment properties

Realized (loss)/gain on disposal of assets
Impairment losses on financizl assets held at amortised cost
Liess: investment management expenses

Net returns op investmerits
Grants
Other income

Expenditures

Staff costs

Administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization charge
Other expenses

Total expenses

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income
Revaluation gain on property and equipment (administrative assets)

Inerease in net assets for the year

10

11
12
13
14
13
16

17

18

23

2022 2021
Notes Frw'millions Frw'millions
284,444 247,444
{143,583) (128,100)
140,861 119,344
95,128 74,974
9,691 (49,299)
7,168 -
(2,428) 395
(691) (4.794)
(2,248) (1,819)
106,620 19,457
8,835 1,424
8,056. 7,326
(11,010) (11,294)
(6,716) (6,597)
(1,516) (1,436)
(11,389} (6,411)
(30,630) (25,738)
233,742 121,813
2,126 -
235,368 121,813

The notes on pages 17 to1635 form an integral part of these financial staternents.
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3.2. Statement of financial position

Assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets:

Investment properties

Investment properties in the process of construction
Equity investments

Corporate bonds

Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Commercial papers

Loan and advances to third parties
Mortgage loans

Inventory

Advances to contractors

Dividend and other income receivable
Other assets

Deposits with financial institutions
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Less: Liabilities

Amounts retained on construction contracts
Benefits payable

Other payables

Deferred income

Total liabilities

Net assets available for benefits

Represented by:

Capital

Retained earnings and Accumulated member funds
Revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

Unallocated pension contributions reserve
Statutory reserves

Ejo Heza member Savings

Total reserves and member funds

Notes

24
25
26
27
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
41
42

43(a)
43(b)

45(a)
45(b)
46
47
49
48
50

1

2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
14,400 13,676
1,774 2,865
227,604 221,582
12,031 7,684
543,897 457,370
57,699 23,441
285,013 203,440
62,399 96,272
29,751 29,296
33,935 35,948

11 16

275 290

6,385 6,944
8,870 5,058
10,083 9,956
279,136 287,626
203,149 134,461
1,776,413 1,535,925
1,453. 958
29,204 28,221
19,920 16,716
837 682
51,415 46,577
1,724,998 1,489,347
1,232 1,232
816,494 711,207
94,982 85,688
(20,590) (30,281)
1,964 1,910
803,259 704,753
27,656 14,837
1,724,998 1,489,347

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on . . U\\ ,\UL L c?— L .and

signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Regis RUGEMANSHURO
Chief Executive Officer

bk

I

"\:_ﬂ_ \- :3\'\._-\&_‘.4\"(““

)

I -

_Mr.-Marcel MUKESHIMANA

Ag Chairperson — Board of Directors

The notes on pages 17 to 165 form an integral part of these financial statements.

BN\
e

-\

A
|

13



1

"SUSTIe)S [erouRULy asat]) Jo wed [eidauy ve oy 697 03 LT soded to sajou oy,

866FTLT 961 186'p6 (06s'0r)  9s9'LT par'918 LTS'LTL ELsL 601 7207 ung E IE SY
am (i 0 0 ko Jopnp
_ ! - - - - - SUOLRGITNE pAEOO[IenR Asnojasud JO usNEoo) Yy
il (43 0 - - ] - - - SUOINK]LIUGS toisuad pageooffeun [BuoIppyY
i) W i} 0 SaAL0SAE 03 sA|quAed Jsipio wog STonNqUes
- - - - - TSR paIra][eUT 10 UOHERIJISSRI0NY
- - 0 - - 0 - - - &uodoad jo nopenjeany
(eged - - SPUTY MBI Pajeao[|eun ezay ol m__ {o5Ea10p)eseAIU]
- - 0 - TETET (es1'en - - - sBugALS faqmam wzay ol uf ssearouf
898'¢ET - #6706 [69% - TrL'T0 4 1| RRE'T - Jeak ) J0j Qoo 9N
9 - - - - 869°C1 - {ogg'c1) - wawisnipe read oLy
LYE 68 0361 899°8 (18z'6¢) LESFT Leene £L6'S89 0RL'e8 TETY 1207 2Ny O 36 5Y
{9) (v esd st Suewip
9 i SHOONQLDUGD PG RN A[Stotaad 1o Bonelof)y
| 01 - - - - - - - SUHINGLILGD ozstx] pojeaoyeun [REHppy
. e soatasaT 0) sapquAed sapo woy suopngiuon
e ! - - - - - - - uomsnxl pajzaoy[EEn J0 UoReDIjIEsE|aY
- - - - - - - - - Apadasd jo uonerasy
e - - - 1374 - - - - SPUTY) J2GLID DIJEIOE[BUR BZAH 0f Ul 05BN 19N
- - - - £69'0H {ggo'on) - - - SpUny Lsqual ezl ofg ul aseatoul JaN
£18170 - - {e6T6p) AN SLYES 01181 - JE24 21 10} SIOME RN
(1} - - - (of) - - - - waunsafpe teak 1opg
O15°59¢"] ) 880°58 81061 Ib6'E T9L°7s0 860°ZES 6i9°L 43al 1207 Amp F e sy
e T B T — g
L} +
2A13521 sfues
5$3a03531
suenngLu0y anIAsIT AIIEDL SpHR} I3 patepas pur SAAIISAY — dey
TEIoL uorusad UONERRARY IW[EA J1Eg vzl ofy spuny saquians HOISHI ] P 4 ferdey
! . : Huonednaag
PO BH[) poE|aTIY
5349891 pUE Spuny SISO ul wuw——ﬂ:u PLURLUGTLTE Lid TR oy
N - . - - o - . o P R S o I e & - e g e
i N i ! ; : i i i ! § B ; i i i




3.4. Statement of cash flows

2022 2621

Frw' millions Frw' millions
- { Cash flows from operating activities:
j Increase in net assets for the vear . 233,742 121,813
e Adjusted for:
# Depreciation and amortization 1,515 1,436
; Investment income (95,128) (74,978)
- ; Realized loss on disposal of assets (equity investments, PPE, Assets held 2.428 (394)
for sale and Investment properties)
_ 1 Change in fair value of equity investments (9,691) 49,299
Change in fair value of investment properties (7.168) 0
’ Write back of prior fair value ioss 1,061 -
; ‘Unrealised foreign exchange loss (160) (22)
j Govemnment grants (8.835) (241)
SN Impairment provision (IFRS 9 ECLs) ; 691 4,794
S Adjustment of opening balances 231) 491
s Iit-kind expenditure - -
: lo-kind income - -
& Operating inceme for changes in working capital 118,286 102,196
{Increase)/Decrease in advance to contractors 574 1,674
; (Increase)/Decrease in other assets (2,912) (3,919)
(Increase)/Decrease in amounts due from/(due to) other schemes 0 -
é' {Increase)/Decrease in inventory 14 71
Increase/(Decrease) in medical/maternity claims payables 983 2,044
: Increage/(Decrease) in other payables 3,205 3,778
‘ Increase/(Decrease) in contract retentions 495 12
Increase/(Decrease in deferred income 155 )
" Increase in unallocated pension contributions reserve 8 1.910
Net cash flows from operating activities 120,809 107,758
i Cash flows used in investing activities:
Dividend income received 8,713 4,058
i Rent received ’ 3,646 2,286
1?121% ;x;e;‘;:; ;I;CO_IIIB received (current accounts, call deposit and 6,787 3,546
Purchases for investment property under construction (4.347) “
Purchase of property and equipment ) (86) (1,76
Purchase of intangible asset ©) (1,177)
e Purchase of investment properties _' ' (3,164) (4,700)
: Purchase of equity inveshn:nts’ (76,085) (28,225)
N Proceeds from disposal of Equity investments - -
Purchase of Corporate bonds (34,000) -
Receipts from settlement of corporate bonds (Interest and principal) 4,206 4,175
- r Receipts from Treasury bond - coupon interest income received 44,590 28913

13
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3.4. Statement of cash flows — Continued

Cash flows used in investing activities continued:

Receipts from Treasury bill maturities (Interest and principal)
Receipts from Commercial papers maturities (principal and interest)
Investment in Treasury bonds

Investment in Treasury bills

Investment in Commetrcial papers

Receipts from settlement of loans and advances fo third parties
Additional loans and advances to third parties during the year
Increase/(Decrease) in mortgages

Placement of term deposits during the year

Settlement of term deposits during the year
(Increase)/Decrease in call deposit

Refund of prior year purchase of Investment propertiés - Rusororo plots

Proceeds from disposal
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Government grants

Government grants refunded

Increase in unidentified member contributions
Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

2022

Erw' millions

144,537
15,930
(100,068)
(104,184)
(13,085)
1,876

0

74
(197,683)
236,654

.. 4079
{61,456}

9,336

9,336

68,688
134461
203,149

The notes on pages 17 to 165 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2021
Frw' miltions

76,129
3,778
(60,486)
(110,375)
(16,915)
5,348

45
(206,713)
234,572

4.642
{62.865)

45,135
— 89327

134,461

16
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

4, NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.  Reporting entity

Rwanda Social Security Board was established by Law n® 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda
Social Security Board (RSSB) as modified and complemented by Law n°® 04/2015 of 11/03/2015 which -
was replaced by Law No. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021.

The Board runs the following schemes under one management with each scheme governed by a specific
law:

= Pension and Occupational hazards scheme

*  Medical scheme

*  Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme
= Matemnity Leave scheme

=  Long term savings scheme (£jo Heza): Prime Minister Order No.58 of 4/04/2018 - Determining the -
administrator of the Long-term savings scheme appointed RSSB as the administrator of the Long-term -
saving scheme.

RSSB is required to manage and promote social security in Rwanda and provide health insurance, as
defined under two broad categories below:

1) Social security in Rwanda
= Qld age pension, survivorship benefits, nonoccupational invalidity benefits (Pension scheme)
= QOcecupational hazards insurance {(Occupational Hazards scheme)
a  Maternity leave benefits scheme
» Long-term saving scheme
2) Health insurance
=  Community-based health insurance scheme

= Medical insurance scheme

2. Basis of accounting

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. (IASB). These are
separate financial statements and are not. consolidated, as would be required by IFRS 10: Consolidated
Financial Statements, in respect of the investees over which the Board exercises control. The directors, in
their judgment believe that despite this deviation, the financial statements provide reliable and useful
information to its stakeholders, '

Under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10, a parent entity that is an Investment entity is exempt from consolidation if

that entity measures interests in subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Paragraph 27 of

IFRS 10 requires a parent entity to defermine if it is an investment entity. An investment entity is an entity

that:

1} Obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with
investment management services;
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continned)

Basis of accounting (Continued)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

2) Commits to its investor(s) that its business purpese is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investinent income, or both; and

3) Measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its inves_tments on a fair value basis.

Accordingly, the directors have determined RSSB to be an investment entity as its mandate includes the
management of finds on behalf of contributing members to ensure the following.

1) Coliects and invests funds contributed by fund members providing investment management services
over investments made on behalf of contributing members with aim of ensuring that long term fund
obligations to contributing members are met as and when they fall due.

2) Commits to contributing members te invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income or both

3) And measures the performance of substantially all of its investments o a fair value basis.

The directors have thus chosen to apply the exemption from consolidation under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10
and to account for RSSB interests in entities that qualify to be subsidiaries at fair value through profit or

loss.

In addition, under paragraph 18 of IAS 28, when an investment in an associate or a joit venture is held by,
or is held indirectly through, an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or a mutual fund, unit trust and
similar entities including investment-linked insurance funds, the entity may elect to measure investments in
those associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit.or loss in accordance with IJFRS 9. RSSB as
an investment entity has elected to measure its associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit.or
loss. The companies in which the Board has interests/shareholding and a summary of their key financial

data are disclosed in note 28 to these financial statements.

The Board has carefully evaluated the mandatory consolidation requirements under paragraphs IFRS
10.B8SE, IFRS 10.B85C and IFRS 10.B85D to the exemptions under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10 and are
satisfied that these requirements have been complied with.

b) Basis for measurement ‘
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except where otherwise mentioned in

the policy notes. Financial assets. including equity investments designated at fair value through profit or
loss, investment properties, land and buildings and assets held for sale have been measured at fair value.

3. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented i Rwanda francs (Frw), which is the Board’s functional currency
and all values are presented in millions (*000,000), except where otherwise indicated.

4. Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that

affect the application of the Board’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from thése estimates. Estimates and underlying

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in 'which the estimate are revised and in-any future periods affected.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Basis of accounting (Continued)

5, Significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

a) Members® funds

The Board is funded through contributions from members and investment income. Contributions are
accounted for as follows:.

(i) Contributions from members

Contributions from employees remitted by the employers are recognized on a cash basis. Contributioris duie
but not yet received at the end of the financial year are not accrued. They are accounted for and recognized
in subsequent years when received. The contributions remitted by employers for Pension, medical and

maternity are based on the respective laws for pension, medical and maternity schemes. Contributions. for
CBHI are remitted directly by the beneficiaries and from other sources of income as defined by the law.

(ii) Benefit payments to members

Benefits to members are accounted for on an accrual basis. Benefit payments made but not collected by
members are written back in the cash book and no liability thereof recognized in the financial statements.

(i) Actuarial valuation

The available actuarial valuation was performed using the financial information of the Board as at 30 June
2020 for the pension, occupational hazards and medical benefit insurance schemes and incorporated
projections for a 50 year period to 2070. The policy of the Board is to cary out actuarial valuations every
three years. See details in note 53.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Board and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

(i} Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income or expense is recorded using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the firiancial asset or liability.

(i) Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividends is established.
(iii) Renral income

Rental income from investment properties is recognized in the statement of comprehensive on the straight-
line basis over the term of the property lease. '

(iv}) Other income

Other income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities and includes gains from
disposal of Board’s assets and all realised and unrealised foreign exchange differences.

19




- -" RWANDA SCCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

- ¢) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated info Rwanda francs at the exchange rate

: ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the

. reporting date are translated into Rwandan francs at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary

¥ assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to
Rwandan francs at the date when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency gains and losses arising

- , from translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.

’ d} Financial instruments
Financial Assets
f N i} Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value Through Profit/Loss (FVTPL).
i A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
4 designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a busiriess model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
i cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPL

e mern

A debt instrument is measured at FEVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
; — the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cash flows and selling financial assets; and
; — the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPL.

: On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the RSSB may irrevocably
o ! elect to present subsequént changes in fair value in OCL This election is made on an investment-by-

investment basis.
e ! All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL,
v In addition, on initial recognition, the RSSB may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise

o meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD .
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 \

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

Business model assessment

The RSSB. makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided |
to management. The information considered inciudes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,

maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the

assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the RSSB’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the RSSB’s stated objective for managing -
the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

The RSSB’s business comprises primarily investment in commercial entities for earning dividends,
corporate bonds and government paper (treasury bills and bonds} loans to customers that are held for
collecting contractual cash flows.

Certain debt securities are held by the RSSB in a separate portfolio for long-term yield. These
securities may be sold, but such sales are not expected to be more than infrequent. The RSSB considers
that these securities are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect the
contractual cash flows.

Certain other debt securities are held by the RSSB in separate portfolios fo meet everyday liguidity
needs, The RSSB seeks to minimise the costs of managing these liquidity needs and therefore actively
manages the return on the portfolio. That return consists of collecting contractual cash flows as well as
gains and losses from the sale of financial assets. The investment strategy often results in sales activity
that is significant in value. The RSSB considers that these financial assets are held within a business.
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor
held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial asscts.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ i5 defined as the fair value of the financial ‘asset on
initial recogmition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Sigrificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financigl Instruments (Continued
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPL, the RSSB considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that -
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition,
In making the assessment, the RSSB considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
— leverage features;

~— prepayment and extension terms;

— ‘terms that limit the RSSB’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest,
Tates).

‘Equity instruments have contractual cash flows that do not meet the SPPI criterion. Accordingly, all such
financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless the FVOCI option is selected

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
RSSB changes its business model for managing financial assets.

ii) Derecognition

The RSSB derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a fransaction in which:
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the finarcial asset are transferred or in which the
RSSB neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset, '

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as at
FVOCI is not recognised in prefit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the RSSB is recognised as a
separate asset or liability.

The RSSB enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial
position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a

portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

When assets are sold to-a third party with a concurrent total return swap on the transferred assets, the
transaction is accounted for as a secured financing transaction similar to sale-and-repurchase transactions,
because the RSSB retains all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of such assets.

In transactions in which the RSSB neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ?

.ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the assect, the RSSB continues to recogmnise the

asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset.
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RWARNDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

In certain transactions, the RSSB retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee.
The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is
recognised for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than
adequate (liability) for performing the servicing.

Financial Liabilities

The RSSB derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire :

iii) Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the RSSB evaluates whether the cash flows of the

modified asset are substantially different.

If the cash fiows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised (see
(iii)) and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees
received as part of the modification are accounted for as follows:

— fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent -
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset; and
— other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

If cash flows are modified when the bormrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the
modification is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate a
new asset with substantially different terms. If the RSSB plans to modify a financial asset in a way that
would result in forgiveness. of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset should be

written off before the modification takes place. This approach impacts the result of the quantitative
evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in such cases.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset, then the RSSB first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting adjustment
as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. For fleating-rate financial assets, the original effective
interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market terms at the
time .of the modification. Any costs or fees incurred and modification fees received adjust the gross
carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified

financial asset. .
If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficuities of the borrower; then the gain or loss is
presented together with impairment. losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method or management may elect to present it as a separate item on the
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

The RSSB derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss. Consideration paid includes non-

financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of Habilities, including the new modified financial
liability.

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised cost of
the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate and
the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial Hiabilities, the original
effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market
terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are recognised as an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial liability by
re-computing the effective interest rate on the instrument

Interest 'ra}e benchmark reform (policy applied from 1 January 2020)

If the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability measured at
amortised cost changes as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, then the RSSB updates the effective
interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by the reform. A
change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark

reform if the following conditions are met:

— change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and
— the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis —1.e, the basis immediately before the change.

If changes are made to a financial asset or financial liability in addition to changes to the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows. required by interest rate benchmark reform, then the RSSB first -
updaties the effective interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is
required by interest rate benchmark reform. After that, the RSSB applies the policies on accounting for
modifications set out above to the additional changes.

4

iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and .the net amount presented in the statement of .

financial position when, and only when, the RSSB currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounis and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and sefttle the liability

simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS Standards, or for gains
and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the RSSB’s trading activity.
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AWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instrumenis (Continued)

v) Fair value measurement

“Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market pammpants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most
advantageous market to which the RSSB has access at that date. The fair value of a Hability reflects its

non-performance risk.

When one is available, the RSSB measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or lability
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis,

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the RSSB uses. valuation techniques that maximise the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a
transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial -instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the RSSB determines that the
fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by
a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for
which any unobservable inputs are judged to be-insignificant in relation to the difference, then the financial
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on
initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss.on
an appropriate basis over the life off the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly
supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the RSSB measures
assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price:

Portfolios of financial assets and financial Iiabilitiesthat.arg exposed to market risk and credit risk that are
managed by the RSSB on the basis of the net exposure to either-market or credit risk are ' measured on the
basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for
the particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level adjustments — e.g. bid-ask adjustment or eredit risk adjustments
that reflect the measurement on the basis of the net exposure — are allocated to the individual assets and
liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit} is not less than the
amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on which the amount could be required to be

paid.
The RSSB-recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
periad during which the change has occurred.
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RWANDA SCCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA4 TEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued

vi) Impairment

The RSSB recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

— financial assets that are debt instruments;

~— lease receivables;
— {inancial guarantee contracts issued; and
— mortgage loan commitments issued.

RSSB has recognized jimpairment loss on cquity investments

The RSSB measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for
which they are measured as 12-month ECL: '

— debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
—- other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial
recognition,

The RSSB considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade®.

12-month ECL are the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which. 12-month ECL
are recognised are referred to as “Stage 1 financial instruments’. Finaneial instruments allocated to Stage 1
have not undergone a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and are not credit-impaired,

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial -

instrument or the maximum contractual period of exposure. Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL
are recognised but that are not credit-impaired are referred to as *Stage 2 financial instruments’. Financial
instruments allocated to Stage 2 are those that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but are not credit-impaired. Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL are recognised
and that are credit-impaired are referred to as *Stage 3 financial instruments’.

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

— financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the RSSB expects to receive);

— financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows; :

— undrawn foan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the RSSB if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the RSSB expects to
receive: and

— financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that the
RSSB expects to recover.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD )
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED .30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuedj
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a
new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial
asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows.

If the expected restructuring will not result in derscognition of the existing asset, then the expected cash
flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the

existing asset.

If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset. then the expected fair value
of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset
that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original
effective interest rate of the existing financial asset

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the RSSB assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost, debt financial
assets carried at FVOCT and finance lease receivables are credit impaired (referred to as *Stage 3 financial
assets’). A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have oceurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

— significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

— a breach of contract such as a default or past-due event;

— the restructuring of ‘a loan or advance by the RSSB on terms that the RSSB would not consider
otherwise; '

— it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of anactive market for a security because of financial difficulties,

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually considered to
be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt is credit-impaired, the RSSB-
considers the following factors.

— The market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in bond yields.
—— The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness.

-~ The country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance,

—- The probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary or
mandatory debt forgiveness. .

—— The international support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary support as ‘lender of last
resort” to that country, as well as the intention. reflected in public statements, of governments and
agencies to use those mechanisms, This includes an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms and,
irrespective of the political intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Preéentaﬁon of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost: as ad
assets;

— loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision; and

— where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the RSSB cannot
identify the ECL on the loan commitment coriponent separately from those on the drawn component:
the RSSB presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined arnount is presented

as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss
allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision.

eduction from the gross carrying amount of the

Write off

Mortgage loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case
when the RSSB determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate

sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment is.carried out at the
individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised when cash is received and are included in
‘Impairment losses on financial instruments” in the statement of profit or loss and OCL

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the RSSB’s procedures for recovery of amounts due,

vii) Designation at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets _

On initial recognition, the RSSB has designated certain financial assets as at FYTPL because this
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch, that would otherwise arise,

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the RSSB occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity
investments as equity instruments at FVOCT when they mest the definition of de inition of Equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and. are not held for trading. Such classification is determined
on an instrument-by instrument basis,

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in
profit or loss as other operating income when the right of the payment has been established, except when
the RSSB benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case,
such gains are recorded in OCL Equity instraments at FVOCT are not subject to an impairment assessmnent.
Financial lizbilities

The RSSB has not designated anty financial liabilities as at FVTPL.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT. EMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

€) Equity Investments

Under JAS 27 Separate Financial Statements, when separate financial statements are prepared, an entity
accounts for investments in subsidiaries, associates and Jjoint ventures. either at; '

— Cost :

-— In accordance with IFRS 9, or

— Using the equity method described in IAS 32

As an investment entity under IFRS 10, R8SB is expected 1o measure and evaluate the performance of )
substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis. RSSB also elected to measure investments in
associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. Accordingly, all equity investraents are
accounted for on fair value basis. The classification for the respective investments have been done in
accordance with IFRS 9. The measurement of fair value was determined in accordance with IFRS 13: Fair

value measurement,

1)  Property and equipment
Initial recognition and measurement

Property and equipment is initially recognised at cost. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets-includes the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of that equipment.

its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying value of the replaced part is de-recognised. The cost of day
to day servicing of the property and equipment is recognized in the profit or loss as incurred,
Subsequent measurement

'IAS 16 permits an accounting entity to choose the cost or revaluation model as jts accounting policy for
subsequent ‘measurement of property and equipment. The accounting standard requires the accounting
entity to apply the chosen model consistently across a class of property and equipment,

The Board has chosen the revaluation model for the class of land and buildings and the cost meodei for the
rest of the classes of property and equipment i.e. office equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and fittings,
computers, laboratory, and kitchen equipment,

— Revaluation medel
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and equipment (Continued)

the revaluation reserve. Assets are then subsequently measured at revalued amounts less accumulated
-depreciation until the next revaluation or until de-recognition of the asset.

— Cost model
Other classes of assets excluding land and building are measured subsequently at cost less accurmalated
depreciation.

Depreciation.expense

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and calculated to write off the

cost/revalued amounts of the property and equipment on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives
of the assets concerned. Land is not depreciated. The estimated depreciation rates for the current and

comparative periods are as follows:

Class _ _ Depreciation rate
Buildings ' 5%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Furniture and fittings : ' | 10%
Computers | | | 50%
Kitchen eguipment 25%

25%

Laboratory equipment

Management and directors review the depreciation methods, residual value and useful life of an asset at the
year end and any change considered to be appropriate is recorded in surplus or deficit as a change in
estimates.

De-recognition

Assets are de-recognised through disposal at sale or Board approved write off. Gains and losses on disposal
of an ftem of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from. disposal with the
carrying value of property and equipment and recognized net within other income in profit or loss. At
disposal of revalued assets, the revaluation surplus of revalued assets is transferred from the revaluation

reserve to retained earnings.
g} Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accurnulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impaitmoent whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 230 JUNE 2022 )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Contined)

Intangible (Continned)

Amortisation :

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected patiern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and. are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. There are no intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives. Intangible assets are amortised at a rate of 50%.

De-recognition
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the

net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised.

h) Investment properties
Initial recognition ,
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount

includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the reporiing date,

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in surplus or

deficit in the period in which they arise, Fair values are evaluated every after five years by an accredited
external, independent valuation expert,

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in
surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair

'value at the date of change in use. When the use of property changes from owner occupied to investment

property, the property is re-measured at fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain arising

on revaluation is recognized through other comprehensive income. Any loss arising on revaluation is

recognized through the surplus or deficit.

i) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based on
first-in-first out (FIFO) principle and includes the expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventory, and
other costs incurred. in bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net realizable value is the
estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and selling
expenses or the replacement cost as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENT § (Continued)
Significant A ceoumting Policies (Continued)

J) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Board’s non-financial assets other than investrment properties and inventories
-and are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If such
condition exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated, and an impairment loss recognised in surplus
or deficit whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds jts recoverazble amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of amr asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset. does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from, other assets or groups. of assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there-
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable. amount and impairment loss is
‘reversed only to the extent that the assets’ carrying amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation or amortization if no impairment loss was recognized.

k) Provisions

) Tax

The Board is exempt from corporate income tax under Article 46 of law No.14/2018 of 13/04/2018.
Revenue, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax except:

— where the value added tax Incurred on a purchase of assets or rendering of services is not recoverable

from the taxation authority, in which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of.
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and .

— receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value added tax included

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of accounts receivables or account payables in the statement of financial position.

m) Cash and cash equivalents
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

0} Leases .
RSSB has applied IFRS 16 — Leases on 1 July 2019 using the medified retrospective approach. The
adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a significant impact on the RSSB’s financial statements,

Policy applicable from 1 July 2019
At inception of a contract, RSSB assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Board uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16. This policy is applied to contracts
entered into (or changed) on or after 1 July 2019.

RESE acting as a lessee
At commencement or on modification of a confract that contains a lease component, the Board allocates

the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone price. The
Board has elected to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and associated non-lease
components separately, The Board recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease lability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount. of the lease lability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove any improvements
made.to branch office premises.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Board’s incremental borrowing rate: Generally, the Board uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate. The Board determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest, rates
from various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and

type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Board is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal ‘period if the Board is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Board is reasonably certain not to
terminate early. g '

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future Iease payents arising from a change in
an index or rate, if there is a change in the Board's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, if the Board changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the lease - -
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded.in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero. The Board presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant A ccounting Policies (Continued)

Shortterm leases and legses of low-value assets

RSSB has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease Jiabilities for leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases, The Board recognizes the lease payments associated with these leages ag an-expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term. All leases ‘for RSSB during the year ended 30 June 2021 were low
value in nature,

P Statutmfy reserves

The statutory reserves are set up under article 11 of law

completing law of 22/08/1974. The article stipulates that the National Social Security Institutions provide
the following reserves for both the occupational hazards and Ppensions branches.

Pension’s branch statutory reserve

number 06/2003 of 22 March 2003 modifying and

This comprises the working capital and technical reserves as explained below:

Working capital reserve is equivalent to a quarter of the tota] ex

penses of the pension’s branch previous -
year. Technical reserve should not be lower than the

total expenses of the branch for the last three years.
Occupational Hazards branch Statutory reserve

This comprises the occupational hazards technical, security and working capital reserves as explained
below:
Technical reserve must be equal to the total amount of occupational hazards paid during the year. Security
reserve is equal to a quarter of the expenses incurred during the last three Years. Working capital reserve
should be equal to a quarter of the expenses of the previous year.
6. New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements
i) Newand currently effective requirements
The following standards or amendments issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after | July 2021
New amendments or interpretation Effective for annual periods |,
beginning on or after
~— Interest Rate Benchmark reform-Phase 2 {Amendments to IFRS 9, J 1 July 2021
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) _
[ — COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16) | 1 July 2021 j
The adoption of the ahove standards and amendments did not have a significant effect on the resuits ofthe -
Board .

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16)

at simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent

lessee that applies the practical expedient is
ehg:bl_e rent concessions are lease modifications, and accounts for them in
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RWANDA SOCIAIL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16) continued

The practical expedient only applies if: o _ '
= the revised consideration is substantially the same or less than the original consideration;
»  the reduction in lease payments relates to payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and no other

substantive changes have been made to the terms of the lease.

Lessees applying the practical expedient are required to disclose: .
= that fact, if they have applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions and, if not, the

nature of the contracts to which they have applied the practical expedient; and
= the amount recognised in profit. or loss for the reporting period arising from application of the
practical expedient.

The adoption of these amendments did not have a material impact on the financial statements of the Board
as the Company has not had any lease concessions during the period.

Interest Rate Benchmark reform-Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, JAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16)

The amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting as a result of the reform of an interest
rate benchmark, including the effects of changes to contractual cash flows or hedging relationships arising
from the replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate, The amendments.
provide practical relief from certain requirements in IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 relating
to:

Change in basis for determining cash flows

The amendments will require an entity to account for a change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability that is required by interest rate benchmark reform by
updating the effective interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability. A change in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if the following
conditions are met:

=  The change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and

* The new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis — i.e. The basis immediately before the change

Hedge accounting
The amendments provide exceptions to the hedge accounting requirements in the following areas:

* Allow amendment of the designation of a hedging relationship to reflect changes that are required by
the reform.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)

*  When a hedged item in a cash flow hedge is amended to reflect the changes that are required by the
reform, the amount accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve will be deemed to be based on the
alternative benchmark rate on which the hedged future cash flows are determined.

»  ‘Whena group of items is designated as a hedged item and an item in the group is amended to reflect
the changes that are required by the reform, the hedged items are atlocated to sub- groups based on the

benchmark rates being hedged.

= If an entity reasonably expects that an alternative benchmark rate will be separately identifiable within
.& period of 24 months, it is not prohibited from designating the rate as a non-contractually specified

risk component if it is not separately identifiable at the designation date

Disclosure

The amendments require the Company to disclose additional information about the entity’s exposure to
risks arising from intérest rate benchmark reform and related risk management activities.

The adoption of these amendments did not have a material impact on the financial statements of the

Bo‘am’.

ii) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of Rwanda Social Security Board for the year ended
30 June 2022, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective,

New amendments or interpretation Effective for the Board’s
anutual periods beginning on
or after

— Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendmerits to 1 July 2022
TAS 37)

— Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 I July 2022

-— Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 July 2022
{Amendments to IAS 16)

— Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3} 1 July 2022

— Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 July 2023
(Amendments to IAS 1)

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 I July 2023
Insurance Contracts |

— Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Available for optional
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and JAS 28 adoption/effective

date deferred indefinitely
— Definition of Accounting Policies (Amendments to LAS 8) 1 July 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
New standards or amendments and ferthconting requirements (Continued)

Onerous Contracts: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, issued by the Iriternational

Accountmg Standards Board, clarify that the 'costs of fulfilling a contract' when assessing whether a contract

is onerous comprise both;

~— the incremental costs— e.g. direct labour and materials; and _

— anallocation of other direct costs — e.g. an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and eguipment used in fulfilling the contract.

The amendments. apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 to contracts
existing at the date when the amendments are first applied. At the date of initial application, the curnulative
cifect of applying the amendments will be recognised as an opening balance adjustment to retained earnings
‘or other component of equity, as appropriate. The comparatives will not be restated. Earlier application is
permitted,

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Board.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

s IFRS 1 First-time The amendment permits a subsidiary (as a first-time adopter of IFRS
Adoption of that applies IFRS later than its parent) that applics IFRS 1.D16(a) to
International Financial measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported
Reporting Standards by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to IFRSs.

» IFRS 9 Financial The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of perfomﬁng the **10
Instruments per cent test™ for derecognition of financial liabilities — in determining

those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower includes only fees paid
or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
teceived by either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf,

» JFRS 16 Leases ' The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the lessor
relating to leasehold improvements. As. currently drafied, this example
is not clear as to why such payments are not a lease incentive,

&= [AS 41 Agriculture The amendment removes the requirement to exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring fair value, thereby aligning the fair value
measurement requirements in IAS 41 with those in-IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods. beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with
earlier application permitted:

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Board,

37




[P

T

N

RYWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3¢ JUNE 2622

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {i Contmued)
New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements (Continued)

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to TAS 16)

The amendment prohibits deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it 1o be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

Proceeds from selling items before the related item of property, plant and equipment is available for use

should be recognised in profit or loss, together with the costs of producing those items. IAS 2 Inventories
should be applied in identifying and neasuring these production costs.

Companies will therefore need to distinguish between:

*  costs associated with producing and selling items before the item of property, plant and equipment is
available for use; and

*  costs associated with making the item of property, plant and equipment available for its intended use.
Making this allocation of costs may require significant estimation and judgement.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with earlier
application permitted. The amendments apply retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for-use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial

statements in which the company first applies the amendments.
The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.
Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)

The amendment has:

. updated IFRS. 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework;

= added to [FRS 3 2 requlrement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework) to
identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

) -added to IFRS 3 an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired
in a business combination.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early application is
permitted if an entity also applies all other updated references (published together with the updated
Conceptual Framework) at the same time or earlier.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Board.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
New standards or amendments and foﬂhco:m'ng requirements (Continued)

New and amended standards and intespretations in issue but not yet adopted
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a ligbility as current when they do not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the

reporting period. As part of its amendments, the Board has removed the requirement for a right to be
unconditional and instead, now requires that a right to defer settlement must have substance and exist at

the end of the reporting period.

There is limited guidance on how to determine whether a right has substance and the assessment may
require management to exercise interprotive judgoment.

The existing requirement to ignore management's intentions or expectations for settling a liability when
determining its classification is unchanged.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively from the effective date.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (and its related amendments)

IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and aims to increase comparability and transparency
about profitability. The new standard introduces a new comprehensive model {(“‘general model”) for the
recognition and measurement of liabilities arising from insurance contracts, In addition, it includes a
simplified approach and modifications to the general measurement model that can be applied in certain
circumstances and to specific contracts, such as:

Reinsurance contracts held;
v Direct participating contracts; and
» Investment contracts with discretionary participation features.

Under the new standard, investment components are excluded from insurance revenue and service
expenses. Entities can also choose to present the effect of changes in discount rates and other financial
risks in profit or loss or OCL

The new standard includes various new disclosures and requires additional granularity in disclosures to
assist users to assess the effects of insurance contracts on the entity’s financial statements.

The entity is in the process of determining the impact of TFRS 17 and will provide more detailed.
disclosure on the impact in future financial statements.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Early adoption is
permitted only if the entity applied IFRS 9.

The adoption of this standard and the related amendments is expected to have a material impact on the
Board.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements (Continued}

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments

to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

The amendments require the full gain to be recognised when assets transferred between an investor and its
associate or joint venture meet the definition of a “business’ under IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Where
the assets transferred do not meet the definition of a business, 2 partial gain to the extent of unrelated

investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture is recognised. The definition of a business is key to

determining the extent of the gain to be recognised.

The IASB has decided to defer the effective date for these amendments indefinitely. Adoption is still
permitted.

When a parent loses control of a subsidiary in a transaction with an associate or joint venture (JV), there is
a conflict between the existing guidance on consolidation and equity accounting.

Under the consolidation standard, the parent recognises the full gain on the loss of control. But under the

standard on associates and JVs, the parent recognises the gain only to the extent of unrelated investors’

interests in the associate or JV. In either case, the loss. is recognised in full if the underlying assets are

impaired.

In response to this conflict and the resulting diversity in practice, on 11 September 2014 the JASB issued "

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28).

The Board continues to assess the likely impacts gf these amendments as they could potentially be
significant. ‘

RSSB has not early adopted these standards. All standards and Interpretations will be adopted at their
effective date (except for those standards and Interpretations that are not applicable to the entity).The
adoption of these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the

Board.
7., Determination of fair value

i) Fair value measurement

Fait values of cash and deposifs with commercial banks, trade receivables, loans and advances and other
payables reasonably approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments and/or because they carry interest rates that reasonably approximate to market rates.

The carrying amounts of equity securities held for trading and at fair value through profit of loss are the
same as their fair values since the instruments are presented at fair value.

ii)  Valuation hierarchy

TFRS 13 requires a three-tiered disclosure for all financial assets and financial liabilities that are carried in
the books of entities at fair vatue. This fair value disclosure is divided into three levels as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)}
2 Determination of fair value (Continued)
Valuation Framework (Continued)

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities e.g. quoted equity
¥ securities, ‘

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability.
either directly (e.g. prices) or indirectly (e.g. derived from prices).

1

o Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. These items are not
Level 1 products and contain at least one significant input parameter which could not be price tested from
-any of the methods described for Level 2 products. Examples are products where correlation is a significant
- input parameter and products where there is severe illiquidity in the markets for a prolonged petiod of time.

i

LR

a) Valuation models

§ The Board measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of
inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1 — inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted market prices included ‘within level 1that are observable either directly
(like prices) or indirectly (derived prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market -
prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in.
markets that are considered less active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data.

b) Valuation Framework

A The Board has established clear guidelines on how fair value is to. be determined for all assets and
% liabilities measured at fair value. These guidelines are included in the board’s operational manuals. The
- ¢ fair value of both financial/non-financial assets and fair values have been determined for ‘measurement
and/or disclosure purposes based on the methods below:

Godgien w

(i) Investment properties and Administrative land and buildings .
; The Board uses an external independent valuation company with recognized professional qualification
experience and valtues the Board’s investment properties after every five years (previously on an.annual
- basis). The fair values are based on the market conditions being the price that would be received to sell an
- asset in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. In the absence of an
active price in an active market, the values are prepared by using three methods of valuation — the direct
H comparison method, the replacement cost method and income capitalisation method.

a} The direct campariso;r method: Under this method, the estimated market value of the asset is related -

t to value of a known comparable property whereby the latter’s value-is taken to be the best price that

can be obtained by the property being valued with due allowance being made for value affecting
. : differences such as: location, level and amount of services provided, accessibility, size, cyclical
patterns in the local and regional property markets, development conditions discerned from land titles,
date of transaction, condition (in case of baildings), sales data, tenure and unexpired term,

Aim s et it neib T
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

~ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Determination of fair value (Continued)
Valuation Framework (Continned)

b) The replacement cost methed: This method is a method of last resort in the event of the absence of an
active market or related market (under the direct comparison method). Under this method, the
estimated value of the property is. made in relation to what it will cost to acquire the asset at current
price. The basic premise/assumption being that no prudent investor would pay for an asset on offer
more than it would cost to acquire the asset new by undertaking property development. The valuation
is thus based on the current cost of constructing a similar building capable of performing the same
function as the asset being vaiued. Since the subject asset’s life will have been relatively consumed
with its age, then the cost estimate is then adjusted to reflect the consumed life. This method was
applied in determining value for some investmnent properties and administrative buildings classified

under the property and.equipment class — land and buildings. This class of property and equipment is
accounted for using the revaluation model in accordance with the requirements of IAS 16: Property,

Plant and Equipment.

c) Investment method/ Income Capitalization method: This method estimates market value of the
property-based income eamed from the property. The value of the property under this method is
determined by how much rental income the property generates. The market value of each property is -
determined by considering the annual market rent income of the property and an estimated
multiplier/capitalisation factor (referred to as years purchase, YP). The capitalisation rate and
multiplier are determined by the valuation experts based on the market for similar property. This
method was applied in determining value for some investment properties.

(ii) Valuation of Land

The valuation for land was based on estimated land prices for specific locations across the country and
value was determined by multiplying the land size with the estimated price per square metre. The
.estimated value of land forms part of the estimated fair value for investment properties and property,
plant and equipment,

(iii) Investment in debt and equity securities

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments and
available for sale is determined by reference to their quoted bid price at the reporting date if available.
The fair value for non-quoted equity instruments has been determined using the net asset value
methodology and the fair value of held to maturity investments is determined using the discounted cash
flow methodology.

(1)  Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value -of future cash ﬂows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The fair value of trade and other receivables

is determined at initial recognition.
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L

Determination of fair value (Continued)

¢) Assets measured at fair value

As at 30 June 2022

'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The table below shows the assets measured at fair value and their relevant fair hierarchy.

Level 1 Level 3 Ameount not Total ag per |
measured at statement of
fair value financial
_ position
_ Frw'miliions Frw'millions Frw'miilions Frw'millions
Property and equipment - 13,534 866 14,400 -
Investment properties - 227,604 - 227,604 °
Equity investments 175,449 306,183 62,266 543,897
Total 175,449 547,321 63,132 785,901
As at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 3 Amount not Total as per
measured at statement of
fair value financial
position
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
Property and equipment - 12,023 1,653 13,676
Investment properties - 221,582 - 221,582
Equity investments 156,225 259,584 41,561 457,370 .
Fotal 156,225 493,189 43,214 692,628
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuedj
Determination of fair value (Continued)

d) F¥inancial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value .
The table below sets out the canjr’ing values of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value:

30 June 2022
o Schemes Penston Medical CBHI Mateg;iz Ejo Heza Total
. Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'nillions Frw'millicns Frw'millions
,,,,, . Financial assets |
‘i Equity investments 62,266 - . - - 62,266
L Treasury bonds 191 771 58,763 6,832 27,775 285,141
T treasury bills 2383 33,046 ) 1,970 . 62,399
Commercial papers 29,751 - . . - 29,751
- 5 Loan and advances to third parties 5,140 28,795 - - - 33,935
: Mortgage loans 1! - - - - 11
- Advances to contractors 6,335 30 - - - 6,385
Dividend receivable 8,649 323 - - - 8,870
. Oter assets 3,521 272 6270 20 . 10,083
Due from / (Due to) other schemes {1,116} 872 34 278 - -
_ ' Peposits with financial institutions 121,948 _ 131.318 - 23,260 2,611 279,136
: Cash and bank balances 105,474 73,211 16497 6,732 1,235 203,149
l Total ' 556,153 331,526 22,734 39,093 31,621 981,12"?r
"' Financial Giabilities ’
f“ Amounts retained on construction
P contracts. 1,387 63 3 - - 1 ,45;'3
;‘ Benefits payable ) - 9.396 19,440 368 - 20,204
— ‘ Other payables 2,858 1,055 15,761 102 \ " 143 C 19,920
 Total 4,244 10,514 35,205 470 145 50,577
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RWANDA, SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD :
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 June 2021

Schemes

Financial assets
Equity investments
Treasury bonds
Treasury bills
Cominercial papers

Loan and advances t¢ third
partics

Mortgage loans
Advances to contractors
Dividend receivable
Other assets

Due from/(Bue to) othier
schémes

pep‘osi‘ts with financial
institutions

Cash and bank balances
Total

Financtal liabilities

Amounts retained on
construction contracts

Benefits payable
Other payabies
Total

Materaicy

Pension Medieal CEHI Teave ‘Ejo Heza Total
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'milfions Frw'millions
41,561 - - - - 41,561
145,170 35,856 - 6,831 15,583 203,440
49,986, - - 3,935 ] - 53,920
20,296 - - - - 29,296
5.319 30.62%9 - - - 35,948
16. - - - - 16
6,943 - 107 - - 7.051
4.677 381 - - - 5058
(2,411) 8,284 4,677 7 - 9,956
{1,000} - 1,000 {0) - {-)
142,602 131479 - 13,545 287,626
89,588 36.571 2,993 4,379 929 134.461
511,747 243,209 8,177 28,697 16,512 68,333
903 55 1 - - © 958
- 8383 19479 359 - 28,221
5,005 443 11,078 63 124 16,716
5,508 8,884 30,558 422 124 45,895
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

8. Operating segments
8.1. Basis for Segmentation

Rwanda Social Security Board has the following five schemes as shown:

Reportable segments - Operations

Pension and Occupational hazard | Contributions from employers and employees in Rwanda and
_ provides benefits to pensioners, invalids arid other beneficiaries

Medical Provides medical insurance services.
Community Based Health Provides community-based health insurance scheme
Initiative )

| Maternity Provides maternity leave insurance services

Long term savings scheme (&jo Assisting the public to accumulate savings for a dignified and
Heza) . secure retirement. Ejo Heza is an inclusive scheme which targets
both salaried and non-salaried workers

heepagit e L

Although the schemes are overseen by the same management team, they have different objectives and are
managed separately within the Board’s management and intemal reporting structure.

8.2. Contribution to performance

The below table shows key scheme ratios to RSSB as an entity.

ot tn raeg iR 7

2021/2022 Pension Medicai CBHI Maternity Ejo Heza
CoﬂtﬁbUﬁODS 44% 23% 25% 3% 5%

| Benefits Paid 28.76% 25.57% 44.47% 1.16% 0.04%
Investment income 63.2% 31.7% 0.5% 3.0% 1.8%
Assets 2% 23% 1% 2% 2%
2020/2021 Pension Medical CBHI Maternity Ejo Heza
Contributions 43.2% 23.1% 26.2% 3.2% 4.3%
Benefits Paid 28% 25% 46% 1% 0%
Invegtment Income 66.2% 28.7% 0.6% 2.9% 1.5%
Assets 73% 23% 1% 2% 1%

46




L¥

LTl S9R'SET 69911 PrO'S: £6RL PEED £09°7 186'6 126’5 FEI°ES S6T'P9 toR'erl AR3K ST F0J SI5SE FAN 0 sy
- 9zl . - . . - . . 010°E - oIt €T yenwdinba pire Kxadosd vio (ssopyee? wonenjesry
I AASUMNSIRIOD JIPO
OEIZE BUSET eesl ph's1 8L ] LY 186'6 ue'se YEF'IS SELP9 L auak auy 3of (SSo{)PROIN] FaN
(SEL'50) {0E9'0E) esT'n o1z Asap) o5¢) {zers) {g6r'an) Grore) (p1o'11) (L61'9) €' suadso fry),
'y 11 1 ) I 0 m £1 (zesh fessn g6’ (ELe's) fons‘1) vy s sasuada a1y
toey 1} 9151 [1:19] {ov) {zn {x) {5$1) (g} 308 t639) Py it 1T Ay uelEZIUOWsE pite Uepersaag
{Loso} o109 (6E1} g {ta1) {0 lEL8'sy g8z} [s5¥'1) {1s¥'1) 1856'1) {age's? 3 sasuailea AMTIENSAIWPY
L4 1 VIR T[T R Zi0'n {oss! toge) ] (3L8'c) (epw's} (L ar‘'a 6'0) (ozs'n) 61 50 yag
saanptiiaxg
REL 9508 13 - i [ 246'C 099's s . 4 B9 FI0'E 8 SROIHL AP
| SEQR 81t 161 . . Ebs'L . 1+ - £ SRIEID
Lsv'el [FA ) L9671 €L8' %'z £51't 168 s IR OEL'EE r8e'7) I€E29 SIIBUEILUY e SUIRI J3N
[31:4]] it - i+99) . . . . Tbss) (144} 1#91'1) 182611 9 d 2 JE3A FEA
. i 5 - . e o Tsen
oL't) (4 (6L 174t tsen 8L (get (oL et (epe) InLo'e) lezz) gl P R T LY SAe Tp——_———
s6g - 1] - - - . | - - ot ] vl s o fesadsip o uBy(sson) pazyeny
synpungnlpe
- - - - - - - - - P PIR SSO] ] 108 R0t ud o {5 )pe ol
- RO - - - - - 2en - i £1 sonpiadoad 1M 0 SNz e of dne|)
i | . " . - seapau gl winomy)
tob'eh) 169 . - . . . . iyl kKL (1eviyt Sl <l MR JrR) Y SISSE (EIRUIGY 50 ANYEA 1B 1 ofuey.)
YOl BTG b1 189% Hi A £ln's 8Tk H8e 81 HE9UT 2894 T 1 MUOTUN JUAIEALI
SHIDIUSEAA BB w:.-zﬁuﬂ
PEE'SIL 195rI Lyg'oL G5'EY vy 085'L g29's §55'9 [FANT 9O1'sz €L5'L 99pt SIHUEI YU S EIP Wiy SUORIRDY JaN
worgED  (gas'ern) 18) (z9 Loy [Zoae) (950°65? ($58°E9) IE01°EE} {giegel tabe'se) (Teiip) 0] pied sygming
ALY L €501 sl 666'L ii'e ¥EL'HY £17°0L LT RLR'ED Iz8'ni BSL°CTI 6 RERLIRQIILO
SIa6| A K SHu|(eag

suopw SO S80|ilju SHCHEE  Sfefiw  SuoHg SUBIfu sumipw susjfi sHolw suB{f suofjria sapon

g g g Mg Ay g g Mg g g M Mg N

wor 0z 1207 badiod Teor fdicd 170z T 7 7207 1ZoT teut
oL vzag ofy E_uw_ﬂ”__ww_u: RIS IHAD FWIPIF (ARSI AWDYIS BOBLLY
dueands 1od awoowt sAsuAaIdinod jo Juswae)g ‘1'¢'g
sjuawidas apqeprodaa meqe uoyeuLIoyU]  ‘¢'g
(panupos) SINHWALVIS TVIONVNIA HHL OX STION
. 2202 ANAII 02 G3aN3 Hy3A IHL HOA
SINIWILIYLS ,_Eo_,_d.z_n_ Qz.d_ 1H0d43d IYNNNY
. _— ISR L e oo QHYOE-AHURIIS TWIDOS VANYARM - -
| ( e
M _m _m w ,_ "m ; ! m




8.

T “TLLoL “Saret X AN 2502 i) VLTSI o8 T0¥ SeTRIT T AR,
LB 959°4T LB 05G°LT - . - - - - - - oS sduarg numut ez3f] ofg
AT 65708 - - - . - - . - E61OL 52608 P saamm L0INNG
oIE1 POSL . - - - . - - - Bls'L ¥ 6% DALRS EONRLIUGD woisaxd | LU}
(18708 {nes'oT - - - - . - OFERE 98I'TT (3 01L'TH) it DANEIIIFER 1D
SY'Y Wk - - - - - - 186'c bES'L FLTRS SpI'LR ap SIS NBIEN|EATY
L. POK9IS 1) ' 68T pE9EE (eog'cr ez btg'ze ois1LE sews %e's1y o e e Sptng G .a_.__s.m_.
el oErl - - - - - . ALET 6L £ £ [ende)

S papuasaiday
LYCERN'T LN To0's1 TLLE O6T'BT rey'et (voe'ze) oz FLE'GHE 698'T0F SETBIT'T HO'SHE SIJRLIG S0 AIREIPAE SFIEL JanS
LS SIFIS £ o @ oLk 85508 sz'sE vhE'S. pis'D1 865 HIr suisne o
i Les 89 it o 0 ] 0 o [)] [+ [ ‘ L QWO Ay
RITA 6’0l . pl 11 ot $L0'1 LoL's) (55 sen'l §0n's BRE £ sfqefed oyn
1t YOT6T - - (3 895 bir'el nEFB1 £BES 98D . . |qofed sjauag
BEG 51 - - - . } £ 5% 1] oh 551 SIS0 HORINIISHDS UG PAULEAL SIUNOIY
SRR HIDRIRY
SIHNGUITE 58]
SIEYGES‘1 £ 288’01 tHLE i Fhy:od hOY'EE KT'e PERTE S50'ESE. £REELY FLE Al LEZ'E9TT SIRSEE JUIg,
t9ree1 (17N h e " ity TELD 'L Lep'al 1LEse FIEEL BHEAE LI o SAMIE{EG LG PUT 5
UTYLED HUBT - 19'c seeel [1}:7 7 R - aLr gl QLEIFL TO9TEl Bhir G 1 suBgnjpSE EuCty QA Sisodan
(1) 0 - - - LTHe 000'; vl - T ony) o1 oF SIS IRV (U1 IREUIC) A1)
%tk £80) 0 ] L [\ Lirh Ty PATE T [ ] 15 of SIASSE ST
RS nLY's - . - - ¢ u [E W U (T3 RE Mgeaant EpINC]
Laid) ey - - - - 1 1 - [ (1704 HE 8 SLGIRAUGD 0] SINEARY
i st y . 6 8 n oh T8 1§ o i 9y Kamgitzan)
9t "n . . - - - . - . - a 1 33 suer Aoy
R SE6'EE - - - - - - HY0E EhiKT 618's (1% R4 e SALAL PUL) ) SINEARE PUIE BE0']
ST 162°6%. - - - - - . - . T 1§26% 33 stadud preanonso 3
it DRETY - . UK a6 - . TETr Ho'E 086°6h 56T s s Kl
arpsi £10'58i RS 159'LT 1E8'0 TERD - - IEYFE £94°5¢ nLIskl L9410 ¥ spuoq Aingeaz),
11 g14 Hi8'Ls - - . - - - - , ItHEC 66'LS 13 spuoq Heseding)
gty L68'ERs- - - ) E - - - D4Y'EY HEYE £R9'SUF o028k 61 Sunsaty Db
: . . - . . . . - - . - e ajes S0 PRy Sissy
PASL 18T . R . R . . . . - ey L 30 ss0ud s U EEEE.___”._.“...—”H_M”ﬂ
TSI BOY'LET - - - - - . : 0T 06801 568'50C SLOSTT oF s JOURSIALY
cuy I Thi =44 4 0 u z L0} T 5T | Lot stasse sy
9y L] < 1 B ¢ 1) 6k Rl Rl fEr 3yl T wntidmba pae Auadoid
. T
SBPULML]  SUOHEW ML SUCGUELMI  SHONRWMIY  SUSHIWLGMY  SUGMIUMIG O SHONRIRAUYL  SBONLALE  SUONEILMAZ  SMOJHIMLAUE  SKORRMMIE  sHbIHn ALY SAlON
Tz 174 | 174 g {114 7202 120z T20Z 1202 i LT a0z '
101, w231 of3 BMIYAg Ne LAyET] SRS 1D IS TN 2AYIG Lajsuny

amatps 13d vonised pepuLHY Jo AW ‘T°C']
{(panuguod) SINTWALVLS TVIONYNIL THL O SHLON

2202 NN 0E GIAN3 YYIA FHL HO4
SINIWILVLS TYIONVNIS ANV 1403 TYNNNY
__ GLVO0a ALMNDIS TVID0S VANV

EEUETEE RS

fm Lt e g moalhSTd o . e e 4 e m..e e b e ittt e - me g s o e et |+« ke it

i i } Ly i }

fageee e



Tl T

.6

pauswajduros

“Aunasg jeroog jo vonesiudi0 Sunisouo) 4161 ‘pz 1su8ny jo me eioeq o Suneiduon pur SUARPOIY £00T/E0/2T 30 £00Z/90 "ON meT Ag
PUE PIEHPOLU 57 {61 3580y 7T JO JOPIQ) [BNULPISINF i3 30d se pauonsodde s1e soAtasar 1o 1, "Aaanoadsor 9 ¢ PUE 940 Suwaq sajes suonnqIuos

SpIEZEY [BUONEANI00 PUB HOISUS o8O 5¢ POSBURUI U93q AR SIWILDS OM] I TG6] U] 5pIezey [euoyednas pUe HOISUJ JO HISWSIGEIS? JU) 90UIS 0N

TR T T T 28958 {istoe) LE8°F1 LOTTIL £LESID USL'8% A
100'91 - - - LER'YY 911 - - -
68282 - - . - 68T°8¢C - .
(g0e'ZD) - - - - (£0€'TD) . -
FLI'6HE - 186 obE'yi - LY LTE - - 64141
SRS 01&'t LOL'6L {12g1h) - I8E'9LE EL6'ST9 03L'88 £
SUHALLY  SHOQULMI SUOHEWALL  SUOIULAL] O SUSHINUAMAE  SUOIIINMAY  SHOMNJRU,MI  SuDIjI,ALY SB[,
. sEurare
A28 sduraus :._22 s3AJa50
SUONM{LEGY  JAJISAT DAL : Fa SIAIISDY
[ereg B — J3gua PUE SpHnj pauzey jendey
1 JEAdy  ames g HoIsE3,]
d g ezay a5y Jagquiaw feeanedndagy
pajedojjenn
FILTT N RN
RE6FTLY. o461 86'r6 {0es'0D) 959°L7 ¥aY'o18 LTS ZEL'sL Firal |
TLLOE - - 99T Sirg - -
PETRE - - - - $£9'RE - -
ez} - - - - {pze'e)t - -
698700 - $ESL 981'i¢ . 0L9°1LE - GYAN|
FH0'SOT [ #96'1 eP1'L% (07 Firs ) - 96E°STH LES'TL TEL'SL €5
w__ﬂm__m—%._.s_hn_ mﬁn“_:_.:-k.-h mnﬂz_m.n_a-uh ,.nn_EmmE-.':h n__.um.:__.ﬂ..r:_...— n——uz_ms..su_m mﬁc_:“—.u..e.—u& a_.—amm_mﬁ.bahh v._—nmmmﬂ.bﬁh
" s8umIea
A5 . . suzars poun)aa 5243350
erog suoyngLIEed  aasasax AR sPguAHY pue spitng 3412504 pserny pendey
! wojsuad uayEnjEAYy s dieg ) EOISIR] sved *
— k b : eZaf] ofy 23O feuenudnaag
. pay MUY

£EE8
VEE S
£OER
IrE8
rees

EAUENET TN
wouy ey

FEE8
YErs
£res
(AR
I'te']

PRIEYEY EX ]
WBAEIG

o],

ezap ofq

DIUMAS SABD) KRBT

auos [HED
SWAYDS [ENPIA

OISLOS TDISUDY

1Z07 2unf gg e sy

o
ezap ofy
R T WS TITERG )

oS [HED
SLUAYDS JeIPIA
UIHIIS UOISUD]

7707 uny g¢ ¢ Sy

SIAIISAI pUE SPURB] SHGWINI H SIZUBYD JO SJUIUNE)S "£°C']

(ponuguod) SINTWALYLS TVIDNVNIL THL OL STLON

o GEMINALY

{

€202 NI OE 03ANS U3 A JHL HOAd

LS TVIONYNII ONY JHOdIY TYNNNY
“advod ALIHNIES IVID0S YAONVARY

?




0s.

RS9

81 SPT'LR

o

9L

S ThY'9k

5£0°189

s

Lk

89YR

TIH'ED

% 2262 SUmp OE 3V

1

i)

i

108'5FL

SBI'BI1'T

o

i -

[FA) -

WL

UL LOL'6L

SR

{9t

9E9'51

LLEEL
1
8098

{st9'sD)

1#1°pIN

ESL'HIL

55N 330 ]

SLG'STO SEa'ee

He0'Es

BEO'LLE

L4 1]

85T

RL'ER

ss¢

;LT

959°1}

£EE)

STT'8L

wakag

Bupnp tuciiguung

- pawa|rEun
Kenonaad

Jo uaney

Teak g

N Suunp sEonRguny
PoIFORTI

PPy

. AT

o RGRATd po

. WAL FUGYIRGLOROD
feao]jeun

30 ugsled sy

o e

410y (sE0huwd

upliEnRATy

TEAK i EOY

THRSSE il uE AsEaaaL

sk

anwzd g Jwawsalpy

i 1207 &1 [ Y

SE1BIIE

a1t i'et

(1251

e

£5L'0L

SLA'STR SEIRE

SEG'LLE

DEL'RE

98L'T

[ /)

STURL

££ 1767 MINT BL 3y

s

S

HE1

SET'PY

OR6T50']

TR[iE, il g

[EIOL

9

gL

- LOL'GL

SHOJQI, ALY SHOIEIH LI

EIY- - TR ]
SUCBNGIULDY  AAmG

PHESEJICHL)

tIEtLet

sy

suuljipu, g

AN
IS A

e

14905

C T
siae
[ranjeLas
pue puny
SHEge
TRIEEIAY

£56°101.

B9LT08

R+3=1
stiohjiu,mag
SATIY

Leopgeys
Jusng

Y3 3 BTY'L

Hloge B0L'eE

Dd=H 3]

SHOHEM, MY Suompe g
H_Paﬂ“au
]
Bunyrep
UBISUWIY

SIANIEIL
nEaag
LILY N

BLIDIAL SLE0ITAY

SFESL

065165

&
LRI Y |
aLasad

ImMBa),
UDjsLa g

BT

eiy'os

a3
SO,

SRAIXsL
ey
jenopednagy
[LZ1R

SEEDIR, ALY
AL
[t
o
paETEN 00

L7

L1y
a
SUDILYR, I

EITEET
Aunsg
zey

LELL

EN'I9

q
LIRS S
LWL R

(e,
prezinyg

L1}

SHAEIEYY SpreEe)y erempdnadg

0

1eak ap

Juunp storngUBes
Pl
Kpsnepad

§0 voDEAEY

LoTE T

Suganp shonmggno
FNEROYEGN
Uy

S

@ weded Py
WM SUOHGUIDY
AU

0 noepESESaY
ek

A gy {ssaponed
GOREREATY

s A oy

EJIEEE Rl i ATRUAN]
eak

2010 sof Jununsafpy

i OTOT Spor E v

v

supIE, Wi

tendey

WIS sparezey [euonedndde puL HOISHIJ — SA1I82 puE P} S SIQUEIT JO JUIUISIRS ['C'E']
(pranupniod) SINTWALVIS TVIONVNIA HL OL STION

e b (IR WS 1 5 g SR et e Bt e

+ oo T e e A

B St ol s LR s T S

{
4,

e e ey Sran i

O e L

e

2202 ANNT 0€ Q3ANT HYIA IHL HOd
SINAWILYLS TYIONVNIZ ONV 1HOdIY TYONNY

5

L e T b e xh..\; e = OHYOH Vf.—.nmamw IO VANVIM



s

0zezn) 7707 dunp O£ IV
186'6 Jea4 s1)) Joj{ssoT)Auo1g
T sooue[eq Suyuado of JuDunSNipY
(g0€°22) 126Z Ame 11y
(€0£'70) 1TOT dunp Og Iy
SE9°T Jzak oy I0J(SSOT)AONY
- sasue(eq Suiado o) Jusunsnlpy
(8£6'v2) 0707 AP TV
STHAIIIM AT F )
sdmuara
paufe)y

QA5 TEIFD — SIAIISII PUE puny S ASQIUIMIU JO JUININE)G “£€°C']
698°20¥ bES‘L 981°TZ 0L9'1LE 6L1°T T20T dung o¢ 3V
0 . ] 0 0 0 . Jeaf ) J0J SSO] UDHEN|EAYY
69°€S 681 op8'L 566'CH 0 1804 D) 108 101
i | 0 0 I 0 : Iead Joud 10y Juamsnlpy
pLI'6VE 186 opEpI PLY'LTE 6LI‘ 12027 Amr 11V
PLI6VE 186° OPE‘YT pLO‘LTE 6LI'Y 1707 dunr 0£ 1V
- - - . - Ju24 51f.J0] SSO] UONEN[RASY
1Zg'se . $98'1- 681°LE - Tead a1 10} 1014
£38 - 1€5 - - Jeak Joud 307 Jusunsnfpy
TTEEIE 186°C LL961 S81'06T 6LT'1 0207 AIng 11V
SUOTIRI MY SUOTIUEAME]  SUOIIOAMLT  SUOTIOMIY SO MI]
10 AAT8Y ATy s3uraiza ende
1901 UCHER{EAIY AM[EA B paurey 151eed

WAYDS [EAPIA] — $94I3591 PUE PN S 13G UM JO JUSWIIELS 7 °C'E8

(pamuguon) SINFWALYIS TVIONVNII FHL O SHLON

2202 INNS OF AIANI HVIA THL HOd
“SINTWILVLIS THINVNIA ONY-LHOJIH TYANNY -
¢ OHYOR ALMNGIS TVID0S VANYMY

e

o e aer s . A




rAS

Lot SIT°E o9 019°LT

phOCl PP0O°SI - .

(c£€) - (c£E) -

- (00L'1) - TR

. (obt'11) . 911

6s 65 ; .

160°91 SOT°T 6LE 8SHP1

106091 SOT'L 6LE RSP'PT

699°11 699°1 1 - -

€T - % 74 -

- (1] . orb'l

- (T1's) - TI1T'6

(09) (0g) . .

611y 6L1 1% S08'€

SUOTFIUE AT SUOIIWI ALY SUOIUL ML SHOII, M
(1] m.m:.._:..uu ”“om”wﬂwa:cu SpuUnj I3

®0], ——— Taq Puiy 13q WA

. ﬁa«ﬁuo:mﬁ;

¥£0'8¢€

¥he ol

687'8L

6827°8T

£68°L

96¢£°0T

L LIIERE |

sSumuaed

paute)oy

ezag] ol —

JUWAYDS IALI] ANUIAJC —

TT0T dung- ¢ IV

Je24 o)) 107 {SS507)/5UI00UT J3N]

SpUny Jequisu pajeooyfeun uf o3ueg)
SHOHTGLIGOD JUSUIIBADD)
SUCTINGLIJUIOD JAqUISTy

Ieak joud 1oy ywounsnipy

120C Amr {1V

1707 aunr O£ IV

SIAQUIBUI 03 POYROOY|L 183131
123K a1} I {SSO[)/AWOU 10N
SPHNY JoqUISTI PaIRIO[IRU}
STEOHNGIIUOD JUSTHILIDAOD)
SUORGLINIO) JoqUIAI

dgaA Jo1xd 1of Juomsnipy
0707 Amp 13V

SPAFISAI PUE PUNY §,3qUIDW JO YIIUNBIG ‘C'CC'

LTHT 2ung L)Y
aeak oy 107 17j01g
1zaf 1o ao) Juaunsolpy

120Z. AL 13V

[COC unr eIV
aeak o) Jog yyorg
Iea4 1o1xd xof jusunsnpy

0Z6Z A 1Y

SIALISIL PUE PUNY §.I3QWIINT JO JUIWINLIS “H°C'C"8

(panutnos) SINTWHLVLS TVIONVNII JHI OL STION

¢Z0Z ANNT 08 43AN3 Yv3A IHL HOA
SINIWILYLS TYIDNYNIL OGNV IHOdTY TYNNNY

i+ AHYOR: ALTANDIAS. IVIDOS VANYMY o . o

{

L

r—




£

ws1'i01 sts'ozt sEL'L) ®en s 0569 =) ole's aLp'st e sy, ER'ZE SAAIR BUHIAL ULy THSY 432 39N
- - - g " PATIEN
em 1 8 )] . {on) ] n 0 [ a 0 D161 153 SEPIINGENUDN Uoiad PaTE0|UT 3 SeENSa)
i g6l (3] €51 0 0 a 0 o B o u PRI PIL3NH W DS P
T <oy o ] o a H £ i f Ll var Jlusias el v § 26T
LY $0T s 0. KL BE SHYT oy 3| viv beL (1) faeed 130 w (pstatsag) 1
] ; iy syt . sapqeiod
FHIT £86 o 0 113 & 9o} {eg) ST'E Tl 1 ¢ — Eaipom T 1) .
1 1 a a H 1 9 Y . I I3 i ¢ AETIAU 0] 25T (AT
- - . P - . SIS Ipe
. i o v it (8¢7) e ey gl {cest LUk a1l {01 30p)aay g u AN
(618') Z167h 0o 0 i (1) g (s tuzg9 BLTE HEE'S Z10'9) BIPSST D0 Ul ASEAIRG (ASeaig)
Rl tie 0 Q il 1] 1+ 1 ' <l {ue) fral o SIDRRAGED O DIUCARE U] AERHMLT (AN}
P 311 £ tarH hv's £61'L €887 €56t oLl Tl B0 6 TeacheD g ons 1) st co) woons Hapraady
- : . . N N _ AROME pUIA-uY
- . . . - . . } : aunipothe pury-u)
16t ezl £t tegl tsil m m [R)! (P9} (] [(375)] tgL) S| ugada ja SRRt
bl’F 169 al K s {80} 8t 9z e o BLeE I ¢ 6 ST tagaad yuausiedug
Lipg) ] - Itz . . (£rs'e) . . litg) - AINEI JUAUAGLY
ﬁ.mu e - . R _ _ . N _ zz) o} spa] pdun o g —x.u__ﬂ:_._:
190°1 . . . _ . ; . . . ' 190t Ao A,
- {sy1ed . . ) . R . . a1 (ste't) spytulosd Juputssauy o (umsibeso] sjes ey
Aol Lev'a) . . . . - - 8981 (oLl LEELr (spu'l) sty Sinbia o (o) ssop onjes e
(syyuadoad juounsiaug
it6g) it .- 1] [{1)] (1} - - {0} {pog} HTH'T PUE S{ES I PiOY SKSSY ") SUSALEIAL
’ K3mba} siassy o [esedsip v neF pazigy
(se'ved lszt'se) (oy1'ny ¥ el iszo'e) {5t {sns) (ezs'sz} laswac {8590 tert o) ARG WA
9Ek'L siel sb o i £ gi o 80y Hi9 34 vig BOUTRZIUABIE P oy
40y pagsalpy
Ig1T THET 9511 vra's1 wh. 0l $E9°T 156 1zeer LS S6THY 28990 ATAK DM 10 12950 J2u g TN
SUDJHISA, A SHOUMW,MAT  SUOHINMMA  SUBHEIVLAAY  SWEINLAIA  SUDJHIAL AL SUDRINGALL]  SHDJEWAIS  SUSMIUALLT O SHGEOUAUY  SEOODAY  SUOJISWsUA
oz TIT 1207 i It TaR 12 Tz 1702 B 1T THE
), a1 ofF HEIGG 28t LIy IURPS HHD SUTIE PR AP LBISUNY
awRYds 13d ssop) gsed Jo JUSWNNIY ‘$'C'Y

(pominuod) SINFWALVIS TWVIINVNIAL THI OL STLON

€202 INAT DE A3GNIT HY3A IHL HO4.
o R SENINRLYLS TVONYNIS GNY LHOJIY WANNY
ST ol ALMNDES TWI00S VANYME

c




12

1oL 6pY's0g &6 se2't siEP L'y £66'Z [ 1s'ss [{i4+ £55°68 (214 aung gf 1 SIEREMEba HERd puE gEN0)
LTE'68 g 9h 676 e BLE 09E'S £66'T T6L'ST 145'0€ rla'se " 8gs'se £I0g { it SPDEAED IS U R
SEL'sk 859'89 ¥ 90F (L:3y) 1334 1 34] POS'El oLl 6E9'9E 5LE'0K 988'<l SRUHEAIDS SIS JAIT ST U SFEISU AN
Wl 9EE'G 1 645 [ 0 ] fs'L o [ T 0 SINARIE IPIBHIY WOLY IS Y
- [ [ [ 0 0 0 ) ) 0 o I SUCHNGLHDS JGLL PIHLIPILN Ul AETRIT
- 2 o 0 0 [} D b} D [i} a o PP SN PEUrEOn
1% HE'6 0 i6e'l 0 b 0 L a 0 T " ]
31338108 Buiatisayy 03} MERYSRD
(595'19) T95HT8) {reet) EI'zn (65'6) 1265'n) T3 SBS {165} RIE'ZI {Be2ie) (sr5795) PIATIEQUPRAEL 0E SRS §SES IR
; I o
9k b0 : ] I . SEr'T ler'z oM'E s8¢ — sy e
. ’ st0d o10s05my - Sp@o:
h ) - - - - - - - - eamszang 3o sspysnd mk sood jo purjay
- - - - - - - - - - yisothop (e 11 aseRIzA( sTaRa])
TAE'PELD FEUOED . - i3] HE'TL - BHURLT BEFLIL £LU'TOL an] ek 23 Guymp sysodap 1@y Ja Uy
P ling 1£8%'461) - nDs'Th {onretd ML - - {06} (zsri0n) (E1LEG) (REOL) 1ead gy Sunnp spsadsp umy o Uy
£r 13 - - . 5 B surog un.&.:a___ piJ ...&.........um
a8 oy
- - - - - - Faunp zasied pagy o) SOUEsRE PUE SRS} RUGOEPY
) " . - sayaud pai
oKl - N - - - E81E 99l 1 0t ] ¢ QURE SUE Jb oy sy
SREn - - . . N . s1a1) (sEen e o y W THAUE3U]
(£5 01 - - - - (Zsu'tyl {arwy &L (PrE R sy SInst, ur HBIEAT
L9R109) (900} (Lgiter (g {Zsgh . . ) Imesn) Y] (®e09 PR INSERIL, UL IS
e ' ’ " . {ismnju pin pediupd)
BLLE UEs's] - - - - - Bl UEss sappem saded [raawe ) vy sy
; L i
I ESHm . iwee) $e1% . BESE osL0L oEzub - K0s')L S — .__..._«__M_,_M_“__u_wg
- . . . ) . - o ’ PIARMAL ALY
LALL UGS . CHOET ;e us . . 19L'r #RLR FLLT SL0TE ssaam) vodtn - puoq Asnseasy i sy
LT =1, . o ’ ) A_un_u_._uﬂ._.m_ﬁ
At ok - - - - - - - SE1 e FSIAN) SPUOG MNEA0) 10 WAKIs Wol stlsamy
- {0EEY - - - . - _ Wnre) spupd ey Jo AsEpa]
- - . . . . ~ . . - 1 Sxtnby go Ip 0T 57 ]
R (smu'si) - - - - - ) . (09'12) (ssoraL) 1 At 30 2wy
tooep) {zoo' - - . . . . . ) (aoch) o) o 3 .
~ (2205} 16} - - - - - 3] - 1) werny ) 155 ajgyfimug Jo petpIng
taz'n) (55) - te) t ize) - nzn tw nen (8 dinibs pe Aztndnd yo sseyaing
" ) . TP R TTLITTN
- tepee . - - - - - - e Zapun : 10) SasaigaIng
. . afed e Nsodap (e
obeE 1889 & ) 15 otk s 585 ) £60t net uoRE - _Eﬁ.uﬂ_m __“H_.uﬁ Selonst KRS P___s
9%TT 9ro'e - - - - - - - 91§ L tIky FavpIL ey
Ly ELLE - - - - - - LN sy SLRT IR PR3] PREDUL UARIAID
ISAPEAYAE Huiysasty Uy PISN SHOE 56D
SNOffHu A SUOGEMAY O SUOIMLAMY  SUOGEBLMI]  SEREiD MY StopEuAay  CSEOMOARS  SUORINMLE  SucHmwAMd  SUOIERNAMD SUORMLAUS  SBORICtig
‘I8 i 1202 feilra T 4211 1z a1 17T i 4104 TehE
oL ey oy JumAgsy 34| Ljpaaa)oy NRGIE IHAD BNRYIG JEIPILN PG UOISEI]
2202 AN 0 J3aN3 4vY3A JHL Ho4d
SININFLVLS TVIDNVYNIZ ONY LH0d3d TYNNNY
. . N . .QHY03 ALRNOAS TWIS0S YANVMH
it e Sounman © I S i e e m e T e Aa ....... e byttt e
; i ; m } } | i i ; i i i

s




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9, Contributions

Sub-Note 2622 2021

Frw'millions Frw'millions

Pension scheme 2.1 125,758 106,821
Medical scheme 2.2 65,373 57,377
Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI} scheme 9.3 70,413 64,754
Maternity leave scheme : 2.4 9,242 7,939
Ejo Heza 9.5 13,152 10,653
' 284,444 247,444

9.1. Contributions — Pension scheme

In accordance with Law. No 45/2010 concerning the responsibilities, organization and functioning of the
Rwanda Social Security Board, pension contributions are determined at 8% of an employee’s gross salary
(exclusive of transport allowance), of which 5% is paid by the employer and 3% is paid by the employee. Of the
amounts paid by the employer, 2% relates to employee occupational hazards while 3% goes towards the

employee’s pension.

2021

2022
. Frw'milliens  Frw'millions
Pension And Qccupational Hazard Contributions 117,726 100,507
Pension And Occupational Hazard Contribution Penalties 7,326 5,697
Pension and Qccupational Hazard Contribution arrears 707 618
125,758 106,821

9.2, Contributions — Medical scheme

In accordance with Law. No 45/2010 concerning the responsibilities, organization and functioning of the
Rwanda Social Security Board, both employee and employer medical contributions are-determined at 7.5% of an

individual’s basic salary.

2022 2021

Frw'millions Frw'millions

Public medical contributions 51,616 45,697
Private medical contributions 13,310 10,741
Pensioners medical contributions 952 839
65,878 51,271

9.3. Contributions — CBHI scheme

In accordance with Article 2 of the Prime Minister's order No.034/01 of 13/01/2020 related to the Community-
Based Health Insurance Scheme contributions, contributors to community-based health insurance are the

following:

1.  The Government.

2.  Employees in State organs and those in private sector.

3. Entities providing health insurance services operating in Rwanda.
4.  Telecommunication companies.

5. Petrol and gas oil trade companies.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
CBHI contributions received by RSSB during the year were as follows:

2022 2021

Frw'millions Frw'millions

Government contributions 11,855 11,779
Members contributions 27,107 25,537
Insurance contribution 9,008 7,935
Employees contributions 6,309 4,830
Telecommunication contribution 1,091 5,244
Petrol and gas oil contributions 11,127 6,194
CBHI Contribution Partners 0 0
Other CBHI Subsidies 3,619 3,075
‘Contributions - RDB 86 36
Contributions - RNEC 121 120
70,413 64,754

*Amount for partner contribution from Imbuto Foundation has been reclassified to other income as grants.

During the year the Prime minister’s order No.034/01 of 13/01/2020 introduced new sources of CBHI
contribution income which include Employees, Telecommunication companies, Patrol and Gas oil and other

CBHI subsidies.

9.4, Contributions — Maternity leave scheme

Pursuant to Law N° 003/2016 of 30/03/2016 establishing and governing maternity leave benefits scheme. The
contribution for maternity leave benefits is equal to zero-point six percent (0.6%) of the salary to which the

contribution is subscribed. The employer and the employee each contribute zero-point three percent (0.3%) of

the salary to which the contribution is subscribed.

2022 2021
’ Frw'millions  Frw'millions
Maternity Conatributions — Public sector 3,940 3,565
Maternity Contributions -- Private sector 5,294 4,374
9,242 7,939

.9.5. Contributions/Savings — Ejo Heza
2022 2
Frw'millions - Frw'millions
Members® contributions/savings 11,446 9,212
Government contributions to member savings 1,706 1,440
13,152 10,653
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RWARNDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
10. Benefits paid

Pension and Qccupational liazards scheme

Medical scheme

Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme
Maternity leave scheme .

Ejo Heza scheme

10.1.

Benefits paid to pensioners

Benefits paid to deceased members’ beneficiaries
Sub-total benefits paid

Incapacity benefits

Other occupational hazards

Subtotal - Occupational hazard paid

Total benefits paid

10.2. Benefits paid — Medical scheme

Medical Procedures from partner hospitals, health centers and clinics
Partners pharmacy costs

10.3. Benefits paid — CBHI scheme

CBHI medicine
CBHI medical procedures

10.4. Benefits expense - Maternity leave Scheme

Maternity leave benefits

10.5. Benefits expense — Ejo Heza Scheme.

Benefits

Sub-Note
10.1
10.2
10.3
10,4
10.5

Benefits paid — Pension and Occupational hazards scheme

2022 2021

Frw'millions  Frwmillions

41,292 35,248

36,712 32,103

63,855 59,066

1,662 1,677

62 .5

143,583 128,100

2022 2021

Frw'snillions Frw'milHons

31,540 27,575

3,419 6,252

39,959 33,827

437 371

896 1,050

1,333 1,421

41,292 - 35,248

2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
26,367 22477
10,345 9,626
36,712 32,103
2022 2021
Frw'millions  Frw'millions
23,946 21,966
39,909 37,100
63,855 59,066
2022 2021

Frw 'millions Frw 'millions
1,662 1,677
1,662 1,677
2022 2021
Frw ‘millions Frw "miilions
62 5
62 5
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. Intangible assets

Medical

Maternity

Total

Pensian .
As at 30 June 2022 Scheme Scheme LBHI Leave Ejo Heza
Frw'miilions Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions Erw'mitions ‘Frw'millions
Cast .
"At start of year 3,200 831 218 10 365 4,624
Disposal/write-off (1.061) 0 0 0 0 (1,061)
Additions 3 3 3 - - C9
2,141 833 222 1 365 3872
Amortization )
At start of year (627) (831) (218 {10} {73) (1_,759)
Charge for the year 1 (L) [¢}] [E1)] © {3 A3l
627 (832} (219 (11) (149) (1,798)
- Clusing net book value 1514 2 2 0 255 1.774
e ——
Pension Medical Maternity : =
As at 30 June 2021 Schome Scherme CBHI Leave Eip Heza Fotal
Frw'millions Frw'milliens  Frw'millions  Frw'millfons Frw'mifltons Frw'millions
Cost
At start of year 2.022 a3 213 10 365 3447
Additions - IT modemisation 1177 - - - - 1,177
3,200 831 218 10 365 4,624
Amortization ’
At start of year (5 (_.W} (711} (209} (10) (38) (1.473)
Charge for the year (120} (119) (9} §3) {36} {286)
(627) (331 (218) (1 (73) (1,759)
Closing net hook value s 2,573 C . - - 282 2,365
Summarised as follows:
As at 30 June 2022
Costat 1 N . Cost as at 3( AmAt Ll Charge for Write- Amortisation Net E
- Juiy -Additlons  Write-offs June July the year offs asat30June . ¥
Frw'millious Frw'milllons Frw'milifons Frw’mill
IT software 2,051 9 . 2,060 { ]._759) {39) - (1,798)
IT modemisation 2,573 - {1,061) 1513 - - - ' 1
{ISHEMA project)
Tetal 4,624 9 {1,861) 3572 {1,739) 39 0 {%,758) 1
As 2t 30 June 2021
IT sofrware 2,081 - - 2,051 {1473) (286) - {1,759)
IT modemnisation 1,396 1,177 - 3573 - - 2
(ISHEMA project) )
Total 3,447 1,177 0 4624 (1413) (286) 0 (1,759 2,

The contract for IT modernisation project elapsed before completion of the project and RSSB took a decision not
to renew the contract. An impairment has been made for estimate of deliverables that will not be utilised by
RSSB after the elapse of the contract. There is an ongoing legal process that will result in the determination of
final value and obligations for both parties and this process was still ongoing at reporting date.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

26. Investment properties

Scheme - Sub-Note Carrying values
2022 2021
Frw'niillions Frw'millions
Pension Scheme 26.1 215,075 208,896
Medical Scheme 26.2 12,530 12,686
Total . 227,605 221,582

Dunng year ending 30 June 2022, RSSB's investment properties and administrative land and buildings
(classified under property and equipmerit — note 23) were subject to valuation by Eng. NSHIZIRUNGU Vincent

an independent professional valuer. Valuation methods used were the Direct comparison, Replacement cost
methods and the income capitalization method.

Valuation of Land

The valuation for land was based on estimated land prices for specific locations across the country and value was
determined by multiplying the land size with the estimated price per square metre. The estimated value of land,
forms part of the estimated fair value for investment properties and property, plant and equipment. The last
valuation was based on 2021 land reference prices published by the Institute of Real Property valuers in Rwanda.
These reference prices had not been revised by 30 June 2022 and new reference prices. are expected in December
2022, Directors believe the 2021 reference prices provide reasonable estimate of the land value as at 30 June
2022,

Where the direct comparison method was used to determine property values, the properties have been recorded at
their Open Market values which is the highest price in terms of money which the property under appraisal should
or could fetch in a competitive and open market under conditions requisite for a fair sale.

Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale at specified date and the passing of ownership from seller
to buyer under the following conditions;

1. Both the buyer and seller are economically motivated and are both acting prudently
2. The sale price is not affected by any undue infiuence

3. Both parties are well informed and well advised and are acting in what they consider to be their own best
interest ‘

4. A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market value

The valuer has assumed that the property is not affected by statutory notices and neither the property nor its use

gives rise to contravention of any statutory requirements. The Valuer did not inspect any woodwork or othcr

parts of the structure that were covered, inaccessible or unexposed, :

The open market values for the lands for development in urban and rural areas was obtained using ‘the
comparison valuation method and international valuation standards.

Where replacement cost method was used to determine property values, the cost of construction was. recognized
at 1,500 USD per square meter (at an exchange rate of Frw 1,015:US$1) by analyzing the different costs of
building similar modern commercial properties completed in the last 3 years.

8t



— ! RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
FOR THE YEAR ENDELD 30 JUNE 2022

s ' NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
As per the valuation report, total valuations of RSSB properties are as follows:
T Valuation as at
. 30 June 2022
- W
| ¢ Open market 236,445,501,000
: Insurance value (excludes land) 84,233,482,000

i ’ RSSB management adopted the open market values for the properties in 2022. Management and Directors have
assessed the potential changes to the values and considered that the values held in the books of account best
represent the value of the properties as at 30 June 2022. Any changes would neither be significant nor rnatcnal to

the financial statements given the prevailing economic conditions.




- RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ‘
26.1. Reconciliation of movement in Investment properties during the year - Pension Scheme

- At:30 June 2022
% ' . ‘Transfer’
H from
; » : Asatlgury  Adjustment  Ad) P ., Fair Agut 30
- g voperty dessclption 3z tevpening  toopening ot Additions  Disposals Some 2022
. investment
; . , property . " _
.. Frw'millicns Fm"mllljnz Fm.‘mililorsl -FI‘W']HI“II]I: _ Frw'nﬂ[lin:. Frw'l\'ulliuz Frw‘mlllm: Frw'millim;
o J KACYIRU EXECUTIVE APARTMENTS 7,773 - - 1,180 (1,201) - - 7.762
GRAND PENSION PLAZZA 24,049 - - 1,627 (780) - - 24,896
MUSANZE PENSION PLAZZA 4,519 - - 779 (209) . - 5,089
- RWAMAGANA PENSION PLAZZA 3.403 - - 429 (46) ; ‘ 3,785
" NYANZA PENSION PLAZZA 3421 - - 7 {61) - - 4,131
KARONGI PENSION PLAZZA 3439 - - 461 (95 . - 3.804
P RESIDENTIAL HOUSE KIYOVU 224 - - 256 57 - - 537
o KIYOVU RESIDENTIAL HOUSE LAND & - - - -
{ LAND FOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 1,782 (1.587) (20) 175
NYAGATARE HOUSES 55 - - . 7 - - . 62
- LAND FOR INSURANCE PLAZZAS 1901 - - (19013 . - - .
FORMER CECFR PLOT 1,143 . - . 139 - - 1.282
: GACULIRO VISION CITY LAND 53,611 . - - 1,184 158 (3B 54922
R CBDI-RUGENGE LAND 1,044 - - - 158 - - 1262
KINYINYA LAND 41,384 . - - {3.397) - - 37987
BATSINDA PARCEL 7,233 - - - 2,939 - - 10172
- . NYAGATARE LAND 670 - - - 99 - - 769
: : RWAMAGANA PARCEL I& 3,136 - - - {1,208) - - 1928
NYANZA PLOT 536 - - - (80) - . 476
a RUBAVU PLOT 51 - - - 160 - - ¥
LAND FROM GPD ‘ 1,552 - - - (231 . - 1322
BATSINDA PIPELINE INVESTMENT 41 - - . (9 - - - 33
: GISOZI PLOT 1,590 - - - - " {1,590) =
- KIGALI GOLF CLUB LAND 7.457 - - . 7461 2,844 - 17.762
”“‘i RUSORORO PLOTS 11,920 - - T (3,520) - - 3400
e NYARUGENGE PLOTS 1.264 - - - 373 - - 1,637
\: ) MATER{EL DES MAISONS D'HABITATION 1 - - - - - = | 1
MATERIELS DE KEA 255 - - - - - (22) ‘233
GROUPES ELECTROGENES DE KEA 170 - - (170) - - - -
ASCENSEURS. DE KEA 198 - - (198) - - - .
CRYSTAL PLAZA BUILDING 2,505 - - 0 . s (2,505 -
NYARUTARAMA PENSION PLAZA 16,318 - - 741 n - 0 17,051
MOBILIER DES MAISONS D' HABITATION 4 - - . - - . 3
MOBILIERS DE KEA 572 - - - - - - 572
: Agen.Amén./Placement 232 - - {232) - - - -
£fﬁ§§f§“‘£ EQUIPMENT FOR ALL 2165 - T (2,165) - - - -
i GASOGILAND 3258 - - - 5611 3y - 8,869
208,896 - - - 325 3002 (4148) 215,075
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L RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
i ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT S(conftinued)

H

i At 30 June 2021
— : ) Adjnstment to -
M el Tomtrwes ,
i Property description Asat 1 July X0 balance (relutid to l.?q"t;iP:ntLt ta valustion Additivns Disposals _ Asat3
(refund exprapriation . v June 2921
: Rusororo  claim Gagulirg investment gainf(ioss)
[ i Floty  vision city land property
B -phon) )
: i Frov'millicns Frw'millions 'Fre'mitlions Friv'millioas  Fro'milliens  Feo'mibllons Fre'milllens  Fre'millions
KACYIRU EXECUTIVE APARTMENTS 7773 ] 0 0 1] 0 0 773
GRAND PENSION FLAZZA Z4IHY o ] 0 0 Q o ;4.049 '
" MUSANZE PENSION PLAZZA 4,318 ¢ i o o o 0. KT
; RWAMAGANA PENSION PLAZZA 3403 o ] o 0 0 0 3,403
; o ! NYANZA PENSION PLAZZA 2421 ¢ i o 0 Q 0 3471
RARONGI FENSION PLAZZA 3439 0 0 0 0 0 o 330
,..,% RESIDENTIAL HOUSE KIYOYL ot 0 (i ¢ 0 ¢ 0 Loy
- KIYOVU RESIDENTLAL HOUSE LAND a3 0 0 b 0 o Toase
. NYAGATARE HOUSES 55 0 e 0 0 o 0 55
o LAND FOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 1536 i 0 [ i o o 1526
- ; LAND FOR INSURANCE PLAZZAS 1901 L g 0 ] g 0 LIm
FORMER CECFR PLOT 143 o ¢ o 0 0 0 Jh42
. 5 'GACULIRO VISION CITY LAND 34633 i i} 0 0 0 11.027) Fastt
CBDI-RUGENGE LAND 1044 U 0 b 0 0 Q 1044
! _ KINYINYA LAND 11354 o 0 o 0 0 0 41,38
: BATSINDA PARCEL ' 7,233 i} o 0 [} 0 0 7233
KYAGATARE LAND 670 1 0 0 0 a ] 670
RWAMAGANA PARCEL I&I1 143 0 a 0 0 0 0 3136
‘ NYANZA PLOT 156 0 0 0 0 0 0 " ss6
RUBAVUPLOT . . 3 ¢ e g a 0 0 51
; LAND FROMGPD . 1537 0 ¢ 0 a 162 (447 1552
: BATSJNDA, PIPELINE INVESTMENT 4i " o 0 U 0 o 4
GISOZL PLOT 1390 o o 0 0 0 0 " 1,550
""‘"“a KIGALI GOLF CLUB LAND .65 9 o 0 0 L h CLAST
RUSORORO PLOTS- 11520 v o o ¢ 0 0 11920
NYARUGENGE FLOTS 1.264 0 i} 0 0 o [ 1,264
' : MATERIEL DES MAISONS D'HABITATION 1 o ‘o 0. v 0 ] 1
i MATERIELSDEKEA . 25 0 0 0 0 6 0 235
GROUPES ELECTROGENES DE KEA 17 I 0 0 o 0 o 170
ASCENSEURS DE KEA 198 o N o 0 b 0 195
. CRYSTAL FLAZA BUILDING 2,508 0 g | a 0 0 2507
;' NYARUTARAMA PENSION PLAZA 16.318 i} t 0 0 65 {208) 16,318
" MOBILIER DES MAISONS D' HABITATION 4 ! 0 0 a 0 o C4
MOBILIERS DEKEA 37 o 0 o 8 o s T oA
Agen, Amén Placement 2 v o & 0 0 o Yooz
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT FOR ALL PLAZZAS 2,165 8 0 [+ o 0 0 1165
_ GASDGI LAND v o o 0 ' 0 3.35% o 3255
i FE8TE i 0 ] T 4780 11,679 208,69
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE-2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
27. Investment properties in the process of construction

Scheme Sub-Note Carrying values .
i 2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Pension Scheme 271 12,031 7,684
Medical Scheme 272 - -
Total 12,031 7,684
27.1. Investinent properties under construction — pension scheme -
30 June 2022
: Reciassificati o .
At July Prilor year . AE30 June
Property description 2021 adjustment Additiors on te :::;: 2022
Frw'miflions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'miltions Frw'millions
LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT - R
LOGEMENTS BATSINDA 2eme PHASE 7,684 - 4,347 - 12,031
Investment in CATCHUP INVESTMENTS
LIMITED ) ) ) '
7,684 - 4,347 - 12,032
30 June 2021
; . Reclassificati
Property description At l;&% ag:;:t.rfl:?:: Additions on to eiher At30 ';g;le
' assets
Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
'LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT - - - - Co-
LOGEMENTS BATSINDA 2eme PHASE 7,684 - - T.684
Investment in CATCHUFP INVESTMENTS
LIMITED - - -
7,684 - - - 7,684
27.2. Investment properties under construction — medical scheme
At 30 June 2022
. At 1 July Prior year .
P rty d tion.
roperty description 2021 adjustment At 30 June 2022
Frw'millions  Frw'mililons Frw'mitlions
Land For Development - -
Property description At 1 July 2020 Additions At 30 Juae 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions
Land For Development - - -
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RWARNDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOAED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

28. Assets held for sale

2022
Frw'millions
Cost

Opening at 1 July _ -
Revaluation gain. ‘ -

Disposals -

2021
Frw'millions

Closing at 30 June -

RSSB’s assets held for sale comprise centre socio-recréatif at Kacyiru estate.
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- :.3 RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

i ANNUAL REPORT.AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ § FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2032

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fcontinued)
29. Equity investments

;. Scheme Sub-Note Carrying values

2022 2021
Frw'millions:  Frw'millions
: "Pension Scheme 29.1 487,005 408,683
. Medical Scheme 292 56,802 48,686
! Totai 543,807 457,370

i

29.1. Equity investments — Pension

: Number of Number of Basis of - Carrying Carrying
} Equlty Ivestee. T-;::ﬂ‘:r:;‘;::_”‘ “aage holding eage holding -shares held skarcy hetd measurement Value as at Value as at
" 2022 2021
N 2022 2071 2022 2021, Frivmiliions  Few'miliions
4 Subsldiarles :
I3
(Contrel evidenced by ownership
— of 30% or more of ordinary
shares with voting rights ard
. borrd representation)
1
H}g;;‘“‘e'oﬂ""""‘m Limited Ordinazy shires 100.00% 100,002 9015 9915 Fairvalue 95,007 95,373
" p Aksgera Game Lodpe [AGL} Ordinary shares 100.00% 100.00%4 4,042,100 4,042,100 Falr value 13,063 11.826
' Sonanwa Life Assurance Ordinary shares 100,00% 1600085 494,005 404,085 Fair valoe o Lo
: Rwanda Ultimate Golf Course Ordinary shares NiA 100% 292,024,677 Cost 38,266, 34559
i .:. Edge Hostels Ordinary shares 37.01% 57.01% 9.041,380. 9,041,380 Eair valig 11,872 10.166
Sonarwa General Insurance Ordinary sharey ' 70.20% 79.20% 382,586,233 332,586:233 Fair value [2,251 6303
Rwanda Foreign Holdings _ :
b Investment Company Limited Oedinary shares 65,95% 65959, 6,675,000 5.675.000 Fair value 3.33% 3,863
e i (RFHIC) .
' Jdolnt Verture
: (Joint contral evidenced with 50%
' of ordinary-shares {eonsidering
e both pension and medieal
: schemes) with. voting rights and
tipard representation)
: “x‘:“ BMI{RULIBA And EAGYH Ordlinary shares 100.07% 50.00% L0006 9,526 Fair value 8.203 4,434
e N Associates
(Significent influence evidence
with ownerskip {considerlng both
pension and medies! sch ) of
0% or ntore of ordinary shares ’
e with voting rights snd board
- representaston)
ULTIMATE CONCEPT LTD Ordinary shares 2,29% 43.571% 2316 2316 Fairvalue 184 S0
- . INYANGE INDUSTRIES LTD Ordinary shares 40.00%; 46.00% 150000 3,280,000 Fair vitlue 19,496 AL
1 o I - !
gxﬁgg{gfvmomsm Ordinary shares 26,42 3.74% 17802275 17892275  Fairvele 28,162 2097
BANK OF KIGALI{BK) Ordinary shares 33.494% 33.49% 302,966,100 302,966,100 Fair value * 50,286 2712
_ EASTERN PROVINCE
- ; INVESTMENT CORPORATION Crdinary sharcs 30.63% 20.03% 53,159 55,259 Fair value 1,834 2484
(EPICY ;
. CRYTSTAL TELECOM Ordinary shares 0.3 30,00 '86,053.000 81,053,000 Fair vajue - 15331 18.642
! HORIZON SQPYRWA LTD Ordinary shires 30.00% 30.00% 1262 1,262 Fair valug 9,677 19585
H RWANDA ENTERPISE
. INVESTMENT COMPANY Ordinary shares 26,329 26.52% 2,652 2,652 Fair value 60 71

LIMITED {REIC)
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- RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

- o4age koldin Number of Number of Basis of Crrrying Carrying
Y Equity Investes Type of equity Yeage holding g 2 shares held shares hield  mensuroment Valueasnt  Valueas at
. instrument : .
2022 2021
2022 2021 022 2021 Frw'mitllons  Frwmillions
CIMERWA Lid' Ordinary shares 10.00% 10,12% TLISI040 3557652 Fairvalue 1,533 8538
RNMIT ITERAMBERE Fynd Fund wnits 23.91% 13995095  Fairvale 3am3 3.055
Other equity investments.
4 {No eontrol or significant
influgnce evidenced by ownership
i of tess than 28% of ordlnary
e . shares with voting rights) ‘ N
- RRoumA MITED i Ondtistary shares 17.39% 17.30% 2400 2400 Fairvalue- 3,241 L84
COMP A NOMIC ZONES Ordinary shares 14.40% 14.40% 164.748 164748 Folrvalue 4546 157
E&}ﬁgﬁ;&”f”‘” ¥ Ordinary sharcs NrA 10.00% 100,000 100.080  Fairvatue 8225 2,528
'f;‘;gND’" STOCK EXCHANGE Ordinary shares 10.00% . 10.00% 10 10 Fairvalue 64 . T
EASTERN AND SOURTHERN
AFRICA TRADE . Ondinary shares 1.58% L.53% 1.702 1936 Fairvahe 28,782 33,832
DEVELOPMENT BANK -
(FORMERLY- PTA HANK)
g:fgjgﬁ’ﬂ;ﬁi‘ffe'n“ Ordinary shares 4.90% L99%  SO4ISB00 20418860 Fairvalue £,067 2.450
1£:01 RWANDA. Ordimary-shases 6.19% 1,94% TA9B2700 5511600  Feirvalue 37224 2,689
ﬁgﬁgﬁgﬁiﬁ%ﬁ"&’g Ontinary shares . 0.57% - 10372 Faisvalue . - 395
AFREXIMBANE Ordinary shates 0.08% 0.10% 124 124 Foirvalue 3354 ‘3044
SATARICOM Ordinary shares 0.12% 0.04% 47053530 17155350 Fairvalue 10,599 12456
EQUITY GROUP Ordinary shares 1.08% 0.60% 40604300 35,000,000  Fair value 15834 17528
FrAF PHARMACEUTICALS Ordinary shares 0.00% 30.00% 657 697 Cost - -
LU BATELITES ‘Ordinaty shares G.00% 0.13% 3 Cost 1067 2013
: AKAGERA MEDICINES INC Ordinary shares N4 313 6000000  6,000.000 Cost 14,861 5,530
d ;"ﬁ;‘::ﬁﬁiﬁgg‘” IRANY Preference shares NIA NIA 100,000 100,006 Cos 5968 420
- VIRUNGA AFRICA FUND Ordinary shares - - Cost 5.393 -
EABL Ordingry shares - - 3,000,000 - Fair Value 3,683 -
KCB Group Ondinary shares .48% 0.48 51.286.541 5,280 541 Fair value 18,055 6443
t O
- : 487,005 408,683
29.1:1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under pension scheme during
— :
‘ the year
. ) Summary reconciliation
i '
. 2022 2021
: Frvw'millions Frw'millions
Asat | July 408,683 428,417
Additional Investments during the year 76,414 27,698
4 Disposals during the year . co- T
Bhare exchange - .
Gain/Loss on share exchange 152 -
’ Fair valuation gain/(loss) during the year 11,845 (47,431)
. Asat30 June 487,095 408,683

H
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued)

b) Detailed reconciliation per equity investee.

Equity Investes

Subsidiaries
ULTIMATE DEVELOEMERS LIMITED (UBL)
ANAGERA GAME LODGER {AGL)

SONARWA. LIFE ASSURANCE

RWANDA ULTIMATE QOLF COQURSE

RWANDA FORBIGN INVESTMENT HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED
{RFIHC)

EDGE HOSTELS

SONARWA GENERAL INSURANCE

RNIT lerambere Fund
Joint venture

BMI (RULIBA and EAG)
Associntes

RWANDA DEVELOPMENT BANK (BRD)
ULTIMATE CONCEPFT LTD

INYANGE INDUSTRIES LT

BANE OF KIGALI (BK)

CRYTSTAL TELECOMMTN RWANDA

RBORIZON SOPYRWA LTD
R\WANDA ENTERFISE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIITED {REIC}
CIMERWA Lid

EASTERN PROVINCE INVESTMENT CORPDRATION (EPIC)
Other equhty investments

RWANDA INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (RIG)

PRIME ECONOMIC ZONES COMPANY LIMITED

NEW FOREST COMPANY RWANDA (NFCR)

RWANDA STOCK, EXCHANGE (RBE)

EﬁSTERN.AND SOURTHERN AFRICA TRADE DEVELOPMENT BANK
(FORMERLY PTA BANKO

BRALIRWA
&M RWANDA

NEW FORESTS COMPANY HOLBINGS LIMITED {UK)
AFREXIMBANK

SAFARICOM

EQUITY GROU®

LEAF [’HARMAC‘EUT!CALS LIMITED

WORLD VU SATELITES LIMITED

AKAGERA MEDICINES INC

NEW FOREST COMPANY RWANDA (NFCR)
VIEUNGA, AFRICA FUND

EABL

KCB GROUP

Totad

" Addition i Falr  Currying
Caerying al capizaf . Forse  Ouln/Los Disposal X valaatio value uy
value ny . Share son Write

at 1 July infection exchange gaindiles . sbiare s during offs [ . ac M
:!{]Z{ during 5) axchiange thi: year gainfles June

; the year o4 5 a2
Fro‘mill  Fro'mill  Fro'mill  Frwtun Fra'mitl  Fro‘mill  Frow'mi Fre'miil  Frw'min
iong foas ions itms iens ions ipns lons " ons
95373 - - - - - - {276} Y5097
11826 2382 - - > - - (1:144) 13,43
- - i " N i N g i
34.590 3,667 " - - - = 9 36,260
3862 - N N - " ° {526) X
10,166 Liay - - - - - 438 11472
6.30% 2085 - : - - h 3,857 s
3055 - - - . - . 168 i
1.439 4,650 T - - - ) {255) 18503
20974 " - - i N - (LEIY) 25162
- - - - " " " 1,834 1854
1,178 7.509 N " - " ) 309 19,496
el - ) i N " " 1574 10,286
15.642 908 - - ; - - 14.318) 1523
9.555 - - - . - - {209 "o
71 . R - . - - i vo60
§.335 - - - - - - - 8538
2489 - - : - - ” {6503 1833
LR} - - " N " " 57 324
3,576 " N . N N - 969 3,508
2528 5130 205 - 152 - - - g3
kY o N - - - - {6} 63
75,832 ip " - h B " 4,621 28,782
2,450 3757 - . - - - 1,850 8057
2,699 - - - - - - 5235 3.3
395 - 1395) - . - - - -
244 N - - - - - 209 3354
12,456 4478 - - - - " {6.335) 10,392
17.828 N " b - - - 11,994} J550
5 . - . . . . B 3

LO3 . " N - N - 54 R
5.530 9331 - - - N i " 4,881
330 3.548 - " - - - - '5,968

- 6,393 N " ) - " ) 6,302

- kR=T - - - - - (29 3683

6443 14,639 . - - - (3.024) 18,056
468,683 76414 - - 182 - - 1845 487,095
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RWANDA SOCI_AL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
'©)  Significant fair valuation gains during the year ended 30 June 2022

* Bagk of Kigali: RWF 7.7 billion gain

The fair value gain is due to the increase of the share price that increased from RWF 240 per share on 30 June 2;021
to RWF 265 per share on 30% June 2022,

Eastern and Southern Trade Development Bank: RWF 9,2 billior gain

BRAILIRWA: RWF 2.1 billion gain

The fair value gain is due to the increase of the share price that increased from RWF 136 per share on 30 June 2021
to RWF 160 per share on 30" June 2022, '

Ultimate Concept Ltd: FRW 1.8 billion gain

Jall
shares converted from both PHL and GoR loans should be allotted to PHL thus PHL become major shareholder
;R8SB '¢ shareholding was reduced from 43.6% to 2.3% .The company continued to make losses. For the vear
ended 31 December 2021, the comparty made a loss of Frw 44 billion (2020: Frw 73.3 billion) . Due to the
mentioned arrangement UCL has got a fair value gain of Frw 1.8 billion in 2022,

Prime Economic Zone: 0.9 billion gain

The fair value gain is consistent with the performance of the company for the year ended 31 December 2021,
During that year, the company registered a profit of Frw 6.7 billion (2020: Frw 3.5 billion).

d) Significant fair valuation losses during the year ended 30 Jupe 2022

Safaricom: RWF 6.3 billion loss

The fair value loss is consistent with the movement in share price for Safaricom shares. The price fell from RWF
41,4 Kes per share (June 202 1) to RWF 24,95 Kes per share (June 2022).

Chrystal Telecom/MTN Rwanda: RWF 4.3 billion loss

The fair value loss is backed by the movement in share price for MTN shares, The price fell from '

'RWF 230 per share (June 2021) to RWE 177 per share (June 2022).

KCB Group: 3.0 billion loss

The fair value loss is consistent with the movement in share price for KCB shares. The price fell from 42.7 KES per
share (June 2021) to 38.65 KES per share (June 2022). :

EQUITY BANK (Group); 1.9 biflion loss

The fair value loss.is consistent with the movement in share price for Equity Group shares, The price fell from 46.5
KES per share (June 2021) to 43,00 KES per share (June 2022),

ot




- - "RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
: ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANC)AL STATEMENTS
: FOR.THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

= NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL 574 TEMENTS (continued)
. d} Significant fair valuation losses during the year ended 30 June 2022 continued.

* AKAGERA GAME LODGE: RWF 1.1 billion loss

The fair valuation loss is consistent with the performance of the company for the year ended 31 December 2021,
The company made a loss of FRW 950 Million for the year (2020; FRW 742 miltion)

" Development Bank of Rwanda (BRD): RWF 1.8 billion loss :

This loss is resulting from the poor performance of the bank
e} Disposals
*  Crystal Plaza

This related to the decision by the Board to demolish the building, due to significant weakening of the building
structure, to pave way for redevelopment. The entire value of the building has therefore been expensed.

e 29.2. Equity investments — Medical
% . Number Carrylng Cacrying
. vt Type of equity . " : Number of Easis of Value ax at Value as at
: Equity Investee Instrument “aage halding %eage holding shares held: “rﬁs;:;“ measurement 30 June 30 .kune
- ! 2022 « 2021
2022 221 2022 2621 Fro'mitlions  Frw’millions
'_ Subsidiary
) RWANDA FOREIGN HOLDINGS _
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED Ordinary shares 28.55%. 28.55% 2,889,606 2,889,606 Fair value 1445 1672
. {RFHIC)
‘ Assiciate
} BANK, OF KIGALT (BK) Ordinary shares 0.85% 0.55% 7:723.900 7.723.900 Fair value 2047 1854
- £ COGEBANGUE Ordinary shares 30.60% 30.60% 2,375 31,375 Fair value 13,467 10557
' CIMERWA Litd _ Ordinary shares 10,1223 10.12% N153020 71153020 Fair value 8,538 §.538
. . Other equity investients
- Eﬁtﬁ%ﬁggfsmam GROUP Ordinary shares 5024 5.22% 70 716 Fair value 972 . 953
i EASTERN AND SOURTHERN. ) . :
¥ AFRICA TRADE DEVELOFMENT Ordinary shares 1.59% 1,599 1.376 1376 Fairvalye 28,988 M.071
BANK (FORMERLY PTA BANK( .
o oy BRALIRWA Ordinary shares 0.82% 0.829%- 8,404,200 8.404.200 Fair value 1,345 1.000
. KT RWANDA LIMITED Praference shares NA NIA [6,775087  10,775.087  Amortised cost -
N 55,602 48,636

29.2.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under medical scheme during
the year ‘

g a) Summary reconciliation

2022 2021

- Frw'millions Frw'millions
b Asatidaly 48,686 56,027

i ' Additienal Investments during the year 270 528
; Interest on preference dividends - 85

Fair valuation gain/(loss) during the year ] 7,846 {1,953)

o As at 38 June 56,802 48,686

e e M g e+ -
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 ,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued)

b) Detailed reconciliation per equity investee

) Carrying Add:::i:il::: Interest on i Is dPrl:;y e:r Fair bclqmz?'i'_'i
Equity Investee value as at 1 injection preference l':g"? o ‘:n{:’ ch? N valuation va 3"09 f "
July 2021 during the dividends g (0 yea comentios Eain/(loss) o
year 2033
Frw'nilliens Frw'miltions Frw'millions Frw'milltons  Frw'milligns Frw'niliions  Frw'mllions
Subsidiary
RWANDA FOREIGN HOLDINGS :
INVESTMENT COMPANY 1672 - - - - {228) 1345
LIMITED (RFHIC)
Assoclate k
BANK OF KIGAL! (BK) 1,854 - - - . 193 2.047
COGEBANQUE SA 10,587 - - . - - 2,880 13,467
CIMERWA LIMITED 8.538 - - - - - 8,538
Other equity investments - - - - - .
; RWANDA INVESTMENT GROUP 955 A ) ) ) 14 973
LIMITED (RIG} -
- EASTERN AND SOURTHERN
i AFRICA TRADE DEVELOPMENT 24,071 - - - - 4,647 28,588
BANK (FORMERLY PTA BANK) .
— ; BRALIRWA, 1,009 - Co- - - 336 1.345
; KT RWANDA LIMITED - - - - - . -
48,686 270 - - - - 7,846 56,302

_ ¢} Significant fair valuation gains/losses during the year ended 30 June 2022
o * Eastern and Southern Africa Trade Development Bank: RWF 4.6 billion gain
« During the year, a fair value gain is consistent with the continued good performance of the bank.

,m\ * Cogebanque: RWF 2.8 billion gain

= _, The fair value gain is consistent with the company's performance compared to the previous period.




RWANDA sOcCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued)
30. Corporate bonds

Agaciro Development Fund
Crystal Ventures Limited
ENERGICOTEL
GASMETH

UFCL

Classification of Corporate bonds (Non-current Vs Current)

Nen-current

Crystal Ventures Limited
Agaciro Development Fund
ENERGICOTEL
GASMETH

UFCL

Current

Crystal Ventures Limited
Agaciro Development Fund
ENERGICOTEL,
GASMETH

UFCL

30.1.  Corporate bond issued by Agaciro Development Fund

At ] July

Opening balance adjustment
Placement

Accrued interest

Maturity

Gross at 30 Jure

Impairment provision (IFRS 9)
Net at 30 June

30.2. Corporate bond issued by Crystal Ventures Limited

At July
Opening balance adjustment
Placement.

2021

2022
Subnote  Frw'millions Frw'millions
30.1 9,726 11,274
30.2 23,069 12,166
303 1,253 o
304 10,133 -
305 13,518 -
57,699 23,441
2022 2021
Frwhnillions Frw'mil.lions
22,541 11,638
8,301 9,349
1,096 .
9,051 -
12,435 _
54,324 21,487
529 529
1,425 1,425
158 -
182 -
1,083 -
3,376 1,954
2022 2021
Erw'millions Frw'millions
11,329 12,529
(304) .
1,223 1416
(2,474) (2,616)
9,773 11,329
{47) (54)
9,726 11274
2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
12,225 12,225
304 to-
10,250 -
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Accrued interest.

Miturity

At 30 June

Impairment provision (IFRS 9)
Net at 30 June

30.3. Corporate bond issued by ENERGICOTEL

At 1 July

Opening balance adjustment
Placement

Accrued interest

Matuarity

At 30 June

Impairment provision (IFRS 9)
Net at 30 June

30.4.  Corporate bond issued by GASMETH

At 1 Ruly

Opening balance adjustment
Placement

Accrued interest

Maturity

AL 30 June

Impaimment provision (IFRS 9)
Net at 30 June

30.5. Corporate bond issued by UFCL

At 1 July

Opening balance adjustment
Placement

Accrued interest

Maturity

At 30 June

Impairment provision {IFRS 9)
Net at 30 June

1,962
(1,560}

1,560
(1,560)

23,180
(111)

12,225
(59)

23,069

12,166

2022
Frw'millions

1,250
158
(148)

2021
Frw'millions

1,259
(6)

1,253

2022
Frw'millions

10,000
182

10,182
(49)

10,133

2022
Frw'millions

12,500
1,083

2021
Frw'millions

13,583
(65)

13,518
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

+

31. Treasury bonds

The treasury bonds held by RSSB as at the end of the year per scheme were as follows:

Balance as Balance as
Description Sub-Note - at Cat
30)-Fun-22 30-Jun-21
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 311 191,767 145,170
Treasury bonds - Medical scheme. 31.2 58,763 35,856
Treasury bonds - Maternity scheme 313 6,832 6,831
Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza scheme 314 27.651 15;583
Total 285,013 203,440
Classification of Government Bonds (Non-current Vs Current)
Non-current
Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 167,534 126,114
Treasury bonds - Medical scheme 52,995 31,245
Treasury bonds - Maternity leave scheme 6,477 6,638
Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza 25,240 15,402
S“‘E‘)“m 252,247 179,398
Current
Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 24,233 19,057
Treasury bonds - Medical scheme 5,767 4,611
Treasury bonds - Maternity leave scheme 355 193
Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza 2,411 181
Sub-total
32,766 04
@ 7 24_ 2
Grand
total (142) 285,013 203,440
31.1. Treasury bonds - Pension scheme
Particular 2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millipns
Opening balance 1 July 145,170 126,597
Prior year adjustments - -
Investrnent during the year 60,578 27,576
Inter_est income earned during the year 18,900 15,473
Receipts during the year (31,643) (23,774)
Cost on T-Bonds - T
Late payment on T-Bonds (726) -
Discount on T-Bonds (310) -
Closing 30 June 192,670 145,870
Impairment provision (903) (700)
Closing 30 June 191,767 145170

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair valye.

H

96



s e bR

Sk et L il e e

RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued)

31.2. Treasury bonds — Medical scheme

Particular . ‘ 2022 2021
* Frw'millions Frw'millions.
Opening balance 1 July 35,029 23,799
Investment during the year 26,810 14,242
Interest income eamed during the year ' 4,965 2,748
Receipts during the year : _ (8,788 (4,761)
Cost on T-Bonds - -
Late payment on T-Bonds {2) -
Discount on T-Bonds 2 L.
Cloesing 30 June 59,016 36,029
Impairment provision {253) {173)
Closing 30 June 58,763 35,856
The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value, i
31.3. Treasury bonds - maternity leave scheme
Particular 2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Opening balance 1 July 6,864 ..
Investment during the year .o - 6,882
Interest income earned during the year 756 360
Receipts during the year (756) 378)
Cost on T-Bonds - -
Discount on T-Bonds - .-
Closing 30 June 6,864 6,864
Impairment provision . (32) (33)
Closing 30 June 6,832 6,831
31.4. Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza.
Particular 2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Opening balance ] July 15,657 3,541
Investment during the year 12,681 11,787
Interest income carned during the year 2,496 1,094
Receipts during the year (2,368) ("?64)
Cost on T-Bonds (588) -
Advance payment (103) 4
Closing 30 June 27,775 15,657
Impairment provision (124) (74)
Closing 30 June . 27,651 15,583

1
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
32. Treasury bills

Balance as Balance as
Description Sub-Nete at at
30-Jun-22 30-Jun-21
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Treasury bills - Pension scheme : 32.1 22,383 49,986
Treasury bills - Medical scheme 322 38,046 42,352
Treasury bills - Maternity leave scheme 32.3 1,970 3,935
Total 62,399 96,272
32.1. Treasury bills — Pension scheme .
Particular _ 2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Opening balance 1 July 50,227 37,811
3 )
Purchases 41,357 47,718
Interest acerued 2,506 4938
Maturities (71,593) (40,240
Late payment on T.Bills {12) -
Closing 30 June 22,491 50,227
Impairment provision (108) {241)
Closing 30 June 22,383 49,986
The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value,
32.2. Treasury bills— Medical scheme
Particular ' ) 2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Opening balance 1 July 42.556 16,513
-Purchases 62,839 62,657
Interest.accrued 3,621 2,924
Maturities (70,786) (39,538)
Late payment on T.Bills (1 -
Closing 30 June 38,229 42,556
Impairment provision (184) (204)
Closing 30 June 38,046 42,352

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value.

1
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32.3. Treasury bills — Maternity leave scheme

Particular

Opening balance 1 July
Purchases

Interest acorued
Maturities

Closing 30 June
Impairment provision
Closing 30 June

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value.

33. Commercial papers

During the year, RSSB invested in commercial papei“s as follows:

Company issuing commercial ‘paper

HORIZON GROUP
NPD Limited

NGALI Holding Limited
Total

Details of the commercial papers.are as follows:

33.1. Conimercial paper issued by Horizon Group

Opening balance 1 July
Purchases during “the year
Interest accrued during the year
Maturities

Closing 30 June

On 22 February 2019, Commercial

Sub-Note

331
332
333

2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
3,954 -

1,822 3,648

184 305

(3,980) -

1,979 3,954

(10) (19)

1,970 3,935

2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
- 12,506

29,751 16,789
29,751 29,296

2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'mill.funs

papers with Horizon Group Limited were renewed attracting an annual

interest of 11% with a term of 364 days from purchase, This commercial paper matured and was fully settled in

2020.
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued)

33.2. Commercial papers issued by NPD Limited

2022 2021

Frw'millions Frw'millions

Opening batance 1 July . 12,840 14,715

Purchases during the year ) - -

Interest.accrued during the year _ 898 1,448

Maturities (13,748) (3,312)

Closing 30 June - 12,849
Impairment provision _ - (343)

Closing 30 June - 12,506

On 15 May 2021, Commercial paper with NPD Limited was extended for 2 months attracting an annual interest

of 10%

33.3. Commercial papers issued by Ngali Holding Limited

2022 2021

N Frw'millions Frw'millions

Opening balance 1 July 17,250 -
Purchases during the year 13,085 16,915
Interest accrued during the year 2,414 800
Maturities (2,182) (465)
Closing 30 June 30,567 17,250
Impairment provision (816) (@61)
Closing 30 June 29,751 16,789

During the year, NH issued a commercial paper of Frw 16.9 billion attracting an annual interest rate of 11% with

a term of 364 days.,

34. Advances to third Parties- Government

1

Pensian Medical Total
- 2022 202! 2022 2021 2832 :202]
Submote - pyciemimons Frw'millions  Frw'millions  Frw'mitlions Frw'milllons  Frw'mlifions
Loan 1o City of Kigali 341 LIs1 1330 1.330
‘Loans to MININFRA 342 3.989 3.989 - - 3,989 3989
Loan to MINECOFIN {CBHI financing loan) . 34.3 - - 28,933 30,629 28,795 30,629
Total 5,140 5319 28,933 30,629 33,935

35,948
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued)
Classification of advances to third parties (Non-current Vs Current) )

Pension Medical Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions

Non-current

Loan to City of Kigali 275 1,330 - - 275 1,330
Loans to MININFRA “ - - - - )
Loan to MINECOFIN - - - 30,629 - 30,629
Sub-total (1) 278 1,330 - 30,620 275 31,959
Current .

Loan to City of Kigali 876 - - - 876 |
Loans to MININFRA 3,089 3,089 - - 3,989 3,980
Loan to MINECOFIN - - 28,795 - 28,795 0
Sub-total (2) 4,865 3,989 28,795 - 33,660 3,989
Grand total (1+2) 5,140 5,319 28,795 35,812 33,935 35,948

341, Loan to City of Kigali

2022 2021

Frw'millions Frw'millions

At1Tuly 1,336 1,501
Repayments (180} ( 165)
At 30 June ' 1,156 1,336
Impairment provision : (6) (6)
At 30 June 1,151 1,330

‘The loan to City of Kigali is from the agreement for Kibagabaga - Kinyinya road project between City of Kigali,
RSSB and Horizon Group where City of Kigali was responsible of contribution for the 60% of the total
expropriation cost evaluated for the branch connecting to RSSB and 50% for the’branch connecting to Horizon
Group LTD investment sites, contribution of 100% cost for the study of road and contract menagement of all
contracts related to this project which is road study and supervision services, road construction works and the
expropriation related services. On 21 March 2019, an agreement between RSSB and City of Kigali to provide for
the modalities of payment amounts due to RSSB by the City of Kigali was signed. The amounts covered under

Details . Amount (Frw)
Advance for the construction of Kibagabaga — Kinyinya road 876,247,281
Compensation for plot transferred to Well Spring Academy 850,000,000
Total 1,726.247.281

It was agreed that payment would be made over a period of six (6) years from the ﬁnancial year 2018/2019 to the
fi

financial year 2023-2024. Payment was to be executed on a guarterly basis with a payment of Frw 75,000,000

per quarter,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

34.2. Loan to MININFRA

2022 2021
ans Loan for Loanfor
: Loan for  Partitioning Loan for  Partitioning ’
! CBD1  of Kicukire Tatal CBD1l  of Kicukire Total
i Infrastructure pension Infrastructure pension
- plaza _ plaza :
i Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'miilions
b At 1 Fuly 3,859 149 4,009 3,859 49 4,009
; Additions - - - - . -
e L Repayments - - - - - (351)
i At 30 June 3,859 149 4,009 3,859 149 4,009
: Impairment provision {19 - (1% (19} (4} {19
* At 30 June 3,846 149 3,989 3,841 149 3,989
34.3. Loan to MINECOFIN
N 2022 2021
Y Frw'millions Frw'millions
. At 1 July 30,629 35,812
’ Additions - -
e Repayments- (1.696) (5,183)
' At 30 June 28,933 30,629
. Irnpairment provision (139 P
§ At 30 June 28,795 30,629
‘ The Loan to MINECQOFIN relates to amounts advanced to Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) Scheme
35. Mortgages loans
E Pension Medical Total
e 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
L Frw'millions  Frw'millions  Frw'miillons Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions
At 1 July: 18 63 ] 0 18 63
—r Adjustment to opening balance . - - - - R
Unallocated receipts on Mortgage loans - prior . .
. ‘year 66 78 - - (1) .18
i Receipts during the year (23] (58} - - {23) (58}
. : Unatlocated receipts of Mortgape loans {63) (56) - - {61 {661
Balance af the 30 June @ 18 - - 2 18
Impairment provision 2) - - . ey
. Nét balance at 30 June 2) 16 - - <) . 16
Classification of Mortgage loans (Non-current Vs Current)
“ Pension scheme. Medical scheme Total
e At30 June 2022 At 30 June 2021 At 30 June 2022 At 30 June 2021 2022 2021
- : ' Frw'millions Frvw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millious
_ Non-current (1) 7 0 0 1) 7
Curremnt (1) g 0 0 (1) 9
. © Tetal @ 16 0 0 @) 16
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continired)

45, Capital Accumulated niembers funds and retained earnings

(2) Share capital

At 1 July 2020

At 30 Jung 2021

At 1 July 2021

At 30 June 2022

Pension Medical Total
Frw Frw Frw

53 1,179 1,232

53 1,179 1,232

53 1,179 1,232

53 1,179 1,232

This reserve records all transfers received from
Economic Planning (MINECOFIN) which are

T e A 2

the Government of Rwanda through the Ministry of Finance and
designated as capital to.the Board
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

46, Revaluation resérve-

The revaluation surplus represents the surplus on the revaluation of land, buildings and investment
properties and is non-distributable. Movements in the reserve are shown on the statement of changes

in equity.

Pension Medical Total

Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions

At 1 July 2020 581 5,981 6,562
Revaluation gain/(loss) 79,126 0 79,126
At 30 Jure. 2021 ' 79,707 5,981 85,688
At 1 July 2021 79,707 5,981 85,6088
Revaluation gain/(loss) 7.441 1,854 9,205
At 30 June 2022 87,148 7,835 94,083

47. Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents the surplus on the revaluation of equity investments at fair value

through profit and loss, and investment properties. This surplus is non-distributable. Movements in

the reserve are shown on the statement of changes in equity. The revaluation has no deferred tax
impact as RSSB is tax exempt by law.

Penston Medieal Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 20921
Frw'millions  Frw'millions  Frw'milkons Frw'milllons Frw'millions Frw'mitions
At1 July (A) (44,621) 2,810 14,340 15,677 (30,281) 13,487
Adjustment o opening balance 0 531 1] 531
Allotement of increase in ngt assets during ] .
the year - gain/(loss} arising fipm changes 1,845 (47.431) 7,546 (1,868) 9,291 (49,299)

in fair values of equity investments ()
Allotment of increase in net assets during

the year - gainfioss) arising from change 4 0 0 0 0 [
i fair value of invesment properties
At 30 June {D=A+B) (%776 (44.621) 22&_86 Egd-ﬂ wﬂ) 30,281)

48. Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves are set out by decree law of 22 August 1974 concerning organisation of Social
Security. Article 15 of the Law stipulates that the National Social Security Institutions provide the
following reserves for both the occupational hazards and pensions branches;

a) Pension Working Capital reserve is equivalent to a quarter of the totadl expenses of the pension’s
branch previous year

b) Pension Technical reserve should not be lower than the total expenses of the branch for the last
three years

¢}  Occupational Hazards Technical reserve must be equal to twelve times the total amount of
occupational hazards paid during the year-

d) Occupational Hazards Security reserve is equal to a quarter of the expenses incurred during the
last three years

€) Occupational Hazards Working capital reserve should be equal to a quarter of the expenses.of the
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAEL REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

48. Statutory feserves continued

Statutory reserves as at the end of the year were as follows:

Occupational hazard reserve -technical 48.1
Occupational hazard reserve -Security 48.2
Occupational hazatd reserve- Working capital 438.3
Sub-total (1)

Pension reserve- techmical 48.4
Pension reserve~ working capital 48.5
Sub-total (2)

Total

48.1. Occapational hazard reserve -technical

At 1 July (A)
Aliotment of increase in net assets during the year (B) 4%.1 (a)

Allotment of decrease in occupational hazard reserve -
technical )

At 30 June (C=A+B)

48.1 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve

Occupational hazhard benefit paid during the year ended 30-June 2022 (B) [See note 10.1]
Allocation of increase in net assets to Occupational hazard technical reserve (Bx12)

Occupational hazhard benefit.paid during the year ended 30 June 2021 [See note 10,17
Allocation of increase in net assets to Occupational hazard technical reserve (Bx12)

48.2. Occupational hazard reserve -Security

At 1 July (A)

Allotment of increase in net assets during
the year (B) 49.2 (a)

At 30 June (C=A+B)

2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
63,922 78,225
8,668 7,769
3,141 2,786
75,732 38,780
681,035 577,938
46,402 38,035
127,527 615_,973
803,250 704,753
Pension

2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
78,225 61,168
1,333 17,057
(15,635) 0
63,022 78,225
Amount

(Frw'millions)

1,333

1,333

1,421

17,057

Pension

L2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
7,769 7,006

899 763

8,668 7,769
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
48.2 () Reconciliation of allotment of et Incomie for the year to reserve

Amount
(Frw'millions)
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2019 345
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2020 343
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2021 371
Total eccupational hazards benefit €xpenses paid in the last three years (A) 1,060
Allocation of increase in net assets of pension scheme to reserve (C=Ax25%,) 265
Amount
(Frw'millions)
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2019 674
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2020 814
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2021 1,050
Total occupational hazards benefit expenses paid in the fast three years (A) 2,538
Allocation of increase in net assets of pension scheme to reserve (C=Ax25%) 635
48.3. Occupational hazard reserve- Working capital
Pension
. 2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
At 1 July (A) 2,786 2,497
Allotment of increase in nét assets during
the year (B) 49,3(a) 355 289
At 30 June (C=A+B) 3,141 2,786
48.3 (2) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve
Amount -
(Frw'millions)
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2021 371
Allocation of increase in net assets of pension scheme to reserve (Frw} (B=Ax25%) 93
Total occupational hazard benefits. ex’pense 2021 1,050
Allocation of increase in net assets of peasion scheme to reserve (Frw) (B=Ax25%) 263
48.4. Pension reserve- technical
Pension
2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'millions
At 1 July (A) 577,938 501,390
Allotment of increase in net assets during the year (B) 484 (a) 103,097 76,548
At 30 June (C=A+B) 681,035 557,038
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
48.4 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year

Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2020
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2021 °
Total oceupational hazard benefits expense 2022

Total benefits expense for the last three years (A)

Allocation of net assets to pension technical reserve (B=A)

Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2020
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2021
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2022

Total benefits expense for the last three years (A)

Allocation of net assets to pension technical reserve (B=A)

48.5. Pension reserve- working capital

At 1 July {A)
Allotment of iricrease in net assets during the _
year (B} 49.5 (a)

At 30 June (C=A+B)

Amount
{Frw'millions)
23,788

29,300

34,501

87,589

87,589

Amount
{Frw'millions)
5,522

4,527

5,458

15,507

15,507

Pension

2022
Frw'millions
3R.035

8.457

2021
Frw'miliions
30,708

7,328

46,492

38,035

48.5. (a) Reconciliation of allocation of net income for the year to reserve

Benefits paid to pensioners in 2021 (A) fsee note 10.1)

Allgcation of increase in net assets to Pension werking capital reserve for the year

(B=A*25%

Benefits paid to pensioners in 2021 (A)

Allocation of increase in net assets to Pension working capital reserve for the year

{(B=A*2504

Amount
(Frw'miilions)
29.300

7,328

Amount
(Frw'million
)
4,527

1,132
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RWARNDA SQCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

49. Unallocated pension contribution reserve

Pension Total
2022 2021 2022 2021
Frovmillion  Frw'million  Frw'million Frw'million
§ § § s
At 1 July (A} ) 1.910. B 1,910 0
Reclagsification of unaltocated contributions from other payables to
resgrves ¥} 1,811 (7 1811
Unallocated contributions received during the year (B) i72 105 172 105
Allocation of previously unallocated contributions 1o member accoants
Cy _ (111) {6) (111 (6)
At 31 July B=(A+B-C) 1.964 1,910 1,964 1,910
50. Ejo Heza Member funds
Ejn Heza
- 2022 2021
Frw'millions  Frw'millions
Accumulated member funds {member contributions/savings) 27,610 14,458
Reserve for unallocated member contributions . 46 379
s . 1483
Accumulated member funds (member contributions/savings)
2022 2021
Frw'millions Frw'nillions
Asat 1 July ) 14,458 3,805
Member contributions during the year 11446 9212
Government contributions during the year 1,706 1440
As at 30 June 27,610 14,458

51. Contingent liabilities

'The Board is a litigant in various cases for breach of contract arising in the normal course of business
The directors are of the view that the Board has high chances of success against the plaintiffs and
none of the cases individually or in aggregate would have a significant impact on the RSSB’s
operation. The directors are confident that the Board shall receive favourable ruling from the
outstanding cases. Information on these cases has not been disclosed as the directors consider that the
disclosure of the information could prejudice the Board’s position. The cases in which the Board is a
litigant majorly relate to alleged breach of contracts that the Board entered into and members suing

for thejr unsettled benefit claims.

Other than the above cases and liability to pay future pensions and other benefits, there were no
contingent liabilities at 30 June 2022, '
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
52. Related parties

The Rwanda Social Security Board operates under the Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning
(MINECOFIN). In accordance with Law No 45 of 2010 establishing the Rwanda Social Security
Board and determining its mission, organization and functioning, the Prime Minister appoints the
directors to the Board of RSSB. RSSB considers the Government of Rwanda (“GoR™) to be in a
position to exercise significant influence over it, and therefore regards GoR and several of its bodies
as related parties for the purpose of the disclosures required by IAS 24 (2009) Related Parties
Disclosures

RSSB has elected to adopt the exemption available in paragraph 25 of IAS 24, and therefore has not
provided detailed disclosure of its transactions with GoR and its agencies. A summary of the Board’s
transactions with the GoR and its bodies is included below:

- RSSB advanced amounts to the City of Kigali, Ministry of Infrastructure and Ministry of
Finance and Economic Planning. Details of these advances are disclosed in note 33 to these.
financial statements.

=  RSSB in the normal course of its investment and treasury operations during the year purchased
treasury bonds and bills as reflected in notes 30 and 31 to the financial statements. RSSB also
places term deposits and operates current bank accounts with the following institutions which
are related parties;

—  National Bank of Rwanda (BNR) which is the central bank of the Republic of Rwanda.

—  Rwanda Development Bank (BRD) - RSSB held 32.2% of ordinary shares in BRD as at
30 June 2021.

—  Bank of Kigali (BK) — RSSB held 34.3% of ordinary shares. in BK as at 30 June 2021.

—  Cogebanque SA — RSSB held 30:6% of ordinary shares in Cogebanque as at 30 June
2021.

—  Zigama CSS - is-a credit and savings bank under the Ministry of Defence (MINADEF).

‘The transactions described above are both collectively and individually significant to the financial
statements, .

53. Actuarial valuation
a) Pension and occupational hazard scheme
. Background and purpose of the actuarial valuation

As previously reported, RSSB therefore commissioned AON Hewitt limited to conduct actuarial
valuation of the pension and occupational hazard scheme as at 30 June 2020, The purpose of an
actuarial valuation is to review the long-term financial sustainability. of a scheme. Aon Hewitt Ltd
issued an actuarial report dated 16 February 2021.

The actuarial valuation report includes projections over the next 50 years from the valuation date, i.e.

over the period 2020-2021 to 2069-2070 for:

i) the financial position of the Scheme on a "going concern” basis; comparing the actual assets
held against a target amount planned to be sufficient to pay the benefits;

ii}  the planning or budgeting of contributions required to bririg the assets in line with the planned
target.

1) the contribution rate required to balance contribution income and expenditure (known as
‘Breakeven Contribution Rate’)

iv)  income and expenditure :

v)  The ‘Balance of Fund’ as a multiple of expenditure (also known as the ‘Fund Ratio?)

vi})  Dependency ratio and membership profile

124




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Management and directors have not undertaken an actuarial assessment for the period ended 30 June
2022 and believe the report for the period ended 30 June 2020 provides reasonable actuarial valuation
to support a review of the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme.

The results of the actuarial valuation of the Rwanda Pension and Occupational Hazard Scheme ("the
Scheme") as at 30 June 2020 over are as summarised below:

1) Actuarial present value of promised retivement benefits for the scheme

The actuarial valuation shows that the pension and occupational hazards scheme had projected
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 5,709.2 billion compared to net
assets of at Frw 1,052.3 billion at 30 June 2020, resulting to a deficit of Frw 4,656.9 billion, as

shown below:

As at 30 June
2020 Frw®
. . billions
et assets of the scheme (A) . - 1,052.3 :
Past service liabilities (present value of benefits promised on service) '
Active members . (4,640.9)
Deferred members ' ' ' (716.4)
Pensioners : (351.9)
Total past service liabilities (B) ' ' (5,709.2) ;
Short fall (C-B) ' ' ' (4,656.90)

This corresponds to a funding ratio of 18.4%. This compares with a Scheme funding position of
34.1% at the previous actuarial valuation as at 30 June 2016 (issued in January 2018). '

The actuarial present value of benefits promised on service as at the valuation date is derived as the
discounted present value of projected expenditure in respect of accrued benefits, based on
projected salary levels.

[
Pension bran c?z

For Pension branch of the scheme, the actuarial valuation shows that the branch had projected
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 5,673.9 billion compared to net
assets of at Frw 789.2 billion at 30 June 2020, resuiting to a deficit of Frw 4,884.7 billion, as

shown below:

Asat30 Jume | -
2020
Frw’ billions
Assets of the scheme (A) _ _ _ _ 789.2
Past service liabilities owed
(present value of benefits promised on service) _
Active members (4,614.8)
Deferred members (716.4)
Pensioners (342.1
Totzl past service linbilities (B) (5,673.9)
Short fall (A-B) (4,884.7)

‘This corresponds to a funding ratio of 13.9%. This compares with a funding ratio of 41.1% at the :
previous actuarial valuation. .
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Occupational hazard branch of the scheme
For Occupational hazard branch of the scheme, the actuarial valuation shows that the branch had.

projected actuarial present valué of promised retirement benefits of Frw 35,3 billion compared to net
-assets of at Frw 263.1 billion at 30 June 2020, resulting to a surplus of Frw 227.8 billion, as shown

below:

As at 30 June 2020
. _ — _ Frw® billions.
Assets of thie scheme as at 30 June 2020 ' '_ 263:1
"Past service liabilities (present value of benefits promised o Service) T
Active members | - 7 | @61)
i _ — — — — %%
Total past service labilities ' ' (35.3)
“Surplus 2278

The surplus of the assets relative to the technical provisions is RWF 227.8bn for the occupational
hazards branch. This corresponds to a funding ratio of 745. 5%, compared to funding ratio of
1,100.9% at the previous-actuarial valuation,

‘The overall decline in the funding ratio of the scheme compared to- previous actuarial valuation is

-attributed to a number of changes to the Scheme since the previous actuarial valuation was completed

as at 30 June 2016; as well as changes in the data, methodology and assumptions. This has. led to
changes in the results since the previous actuarial valuation. The main- changes to the Scheme during

the inter-valuation period were outlined in the actuarial report to as follows:

a)  The last pension increase in the Scheme was awarded in 2018 where the Minimum Pension was
increased from RWF 5,200 per month (which was applicable from 2002) to RWF 13,000 per
month and other pension benefits increased as well.

b)  Prior to 2015, deferred members who had contributed but did not make any claim on their
pensions for a period of 10 years and above would forfeit their benefits. However, new laws
with effect from 2015 have reversed this approach and now anyonte who contributed and who-
claims their pension even after'a 10-year period, will have their accrued rights preserved.

Funding position excluding deferred members

The overall shortfall of the assets relative to the technical provisions excludinig deferred members is
RWF 3,940:5 billion for the Scheme. This correspornds to a funding ratio of 21.1%. The shortfall of
the assets relative to the technical provisions excluding deferred members is RWF 4,168.3 billion for

the Pension Branch. This corresponds to a funding ratio of 15.9%.

-2) Contributions requived to bring the assets in line with the planned target (the required future

service contribution rate)

The required future service contribution rate is the rate of contnbunon that would normally be
appropriate if the Scheme had no surplus or shortfall and the assets were: exactly equal to the technical
provisions at the valuation date. The required total contribution rate under the Penmon Branch to
cover the cost of benefits accruing over the next year, excluding expenses of the Scheme, is 27.1% of
pensionable salaries (The rate is before any allowance to cover the amortisation of the deficit) as
shown below: :
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Pension branch

Required contributions for: Yoage of pensionable salary
Future service benefits under pension branch 27.1 B
. Administrative expenses under pension branch 0.3
' ' ' 275

This comparés ‘with contributions of approximately 1 6.6% of pensionable salaries at the previous
valuation. It should also be noted that only 6% of pensionable salaries is currently being paid by the

employer and employee jointly.

The increase in contribution rate over the valuation period inder the Pension Branch is méiniy due to

the change in financial assumptions and demographic assumptions (ageing population and increase in

life expectancy).
Occupational hazard branch

The required total contribution rate under the. Occupational H_az_ard- Branch to cover the cost of
benefits accruing over the next year, excluding expenses of the Scheme, is 0.2% of -pensionable

‘salaries (The rate is before any allowance to lower the: surplus).

Required contributions for: o eage of pensionable salary
Future service benefits under-occupational hazard branch 0.2 "
Administrative cxpenses under occupational hazard branch 0.1

Historically, administrative expenses ‘represent on. average 0.4%

of pensionable salaries. These:

expenses were apportioned between the pension and occupational hazard branches in a 75%/25%

split.

3} The contribution rate required to balance contribution income and expenditure (known as

‘Breakeven Contribution Rate’)

The breakeven contribution rate represents the Pay-As-You-Go (PAYG) contribution rate as if the
Scheme was unfunded and only considers money-in and money-out without future investrent retums.
The contribution-weighted average break-even contribution rate over the projection period is around

23:4% of pensionable salary as compared to the current 6% of contributions.

The projected short term and long-term break-even contribuition rates required to balance contribution
income with expenditure on benefits and expenses each year over. a 50-year projection period ‘are

‘shown below:

Short-term break-even contribution rates:

Year 20281 20221 20237 2024] 20257 3026 2027 { 2028 2029 ] 2030
Pension 6.60% | 330% | 310% | 320% | 3.20% | 330% | 3.40% | 3.50% | 3.60% | 4.00%
Occupational 1 0.20% | 020% | 0.20% | 0.20% | 0.20% | 0.30% | 6.30% 0.20% | 0.20% | 0.20%
hazard ' : e o
“Scheme _6-80% | 3.50% | 3.30% | 3.40% | 3.40% | 3.50% | 3.60% | 3.70% | 3.80% 420%
Long-term break-even contribution rates:_
Year 2021 2030 . 2040 200 | 2060  20m
Pension 6.60% 4,00% 9.70% I 27.80% 33.10% 18.70%
Ocoupational hazard __ 0.20% 0:20% 0,20% 020% | 0.20% |, 0.20%
|_Scheme. 6.80% |  4.20% 10.00% 23.00% 33.30% | 18.90%
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These compare with the current 8% salary contribution rate of which 6% in respect of the pension
branch and 2% is in respect of the occupational hazard braich.

The current contribution rate seems to be sufficient to meet benefits on a'PAYG basis until the year
2038. The lower Break-even contribution rate at the start of the: projection period reflects the lower
average service (i.e, those entitied to a lump sum instead of the more costly pension payments) and
part subsidy by the surplus in occtipational 'hazar_d branch as well as covering pensicn paymients by a
large active population earlier in the projection. After 2038, the current. coniribution rate is no longer
sufficient as evidenced by the rising required break-even contribution rate. '

The.-'curren_t.pension-' branch contribution rate is expected to be sufficient to benefits on a PAYQG basis
until the year 2036. However, after 2036, the pension branch break-even contribution rate increases to
35.6% of pensionable salary in 2056/2057 assuming that there will be fewer active meinbers in the
future to bear the cost of benefit payments and expenses thereby clearly indicating that the current
contribution rate of 6% would not be adequate over thé projection pericd. The- occupational hazard
Branch break-ever contribution rate is Jow for the duration of the projection petiod to reflect the low

-level of benefits currently claimed from this section of the Scherme.

4) Membership profile and dependency ratio
Age distribution of active membership.as at 30 June 2020 is-shown below:

| Agebracket(years) . | 1620| 2030 30-40 4050 | 5060 | >60)
Number of active members. | 20,401 206:471 204903 | 102,781 42,315 10,398

The dependency ratio shows how the membership profile is expected to change over time and is
calculated as a projected ratio of pension beneficiaries to active members. The dependency ratio is
expected to increase and then stabilize at around 120% reflecting the Scheme’ matuiing over the
projection period and the ageing of the population as shown below:

Year - | 2020/2021 | 2021/2022 | 2030/2031 | 2040/2041 | 205012051 | 2060/2061 | 2070/2071
Ativemembers | 587269 | 639456 | 1.097.689 | 1,149,344 | 1,013,552 862,940 | 971,205
Deferred members | 925,028 | 916993 | _ 850291 | 763,115 647,601 | 504,600 | 343,605
Pensioners | 38338 | 54584 | 102959 273629 | 650,594 | 1,040,366 | 1161163
‘Dependeney ratio ! 7% 9% |. 9%, 24% 64% 121%]  120%

Active membership is projected to increase rapidly initially due to-the high assumptions for new
entrants and low mimber 6f pénsioners. It starts-to fall after year 2050 due to. the higher number of

pensioners and the slower increase in new entrants.

The. defefred members are projected to decrease over time only considering the existing deferred
members without allowing for any new members and a zero-withdrawal rate has been assumed to
reflect the mandatory nature<f the Scheme.

The pensioners are projected to increase gradually over time to reflect the retirement of the existing
active membership, retirement of new entrants in the active membership and retirement of deferred

members, It also reflects the fact that pensioners. are living longer than expected.
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3) Ircoine and expenditure.

The long-term projections of future income and e
 finaneial year 2070/2071 are shown below:

xpenditure from financial year 2020/2021 to

2020/2021° | 2030/2031 | 20402041 | 205012051 | 20602061 | 207072071
. _ _ o ___ Frw billions .
Assets at start of the year 1,052 37261 9294 (850) | (81,609) | (271,854)
Jucome - . —
Contributions 167 518 981 1,485 2619 | 6,087
”.Outgo ) ) i, . . _ . . _ .
Benefits payment 131 233 ) 1,153 5095 | 10702 | 13,931
Expenses 12 36 | 69 104 . 183 426
Total outgo 143 260 | 10222 5199 | 10,885 14,357
Operating surplus/(deficit). 24 249 (241) (3714) | (8,266) (8,270)
Investment income 68 26| s8] gy | a8y | (7.659)
Asséts at the end of the year 1,144 4221 0640 | (4735 | (95358) | (207.783)

Expenditure is projécted to be:more than income on an annual basis from the year 2043. The projected
income becomes negative as a result of exhaustion of assets around 2049 assuming the shortfall will
be finance out of borrowing (hence the negative iriterest).

At branch level, the pension branch has higher incomie than expenditure until around 2039/2040. After

2040, the projected -expenditure is higher than the projected income. This is due to. the scheme.
.demographics of having higher number of beneficiaries many of whom are currently above normal
retirement age and the effect of the lower contributions than required. The assets held are projected to
reduce to become negative due to increasing benefits payments and expenses.

The occupational hazard branch is projected to- have higher income than expenditure over the whole

projected period. .

6) The ‘Balance of Fund as a muftiple of expenditure (also known as the ‘Fund Ratio’)

The fund ratio shows the projected balance of the fund at the start of the year expressed as a multiple
of expenditures on benefits and other administrative costs expected in that'year. The projected fund
rafios have been calculated assuming the current. contribution rates remain tnchanged and allowing
for future investment returns.and are as follows:

L _ 2021 2030 2040 2050 | 2060 | 2070
Fund ratio - Pension branch 570 961 4l @s)] aoy| @36
JFund ratiQ—Occupat'ional ﬁazard ‘branch 63.7 96.8 | -_1.61.'4‘ 278.3 | 44591 5329
Scheme 174 138] 76 02)| @751 (18.9)

The scheme is projected to contitiue to grow for several years and peak in the financial year
2029/2030 after which it is projected to decline and become insolvent at around financial ‘year
2049/2050. This is because the pension branch is expected in. the long term to pay -out pension
benefits to an increased number of members while insufficient contributions are being made to pay for
the required benefits. '

At branch level, the pension branch is projected to continue to grow and-peak at financial year
2023/2024 after which it is expected to decline unfil it becomes inso}vent around financial year
2046/2047, The occupational hazard branch has a riet surplus and is projected to continue to grow and
remain solvent over the projected period due to the projected low level of benefit payments.
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Methods and key assumptions used

Projection methodology.

The ‘model used for projection used as a starting point’ the clean data and applied the labour force
assumptions for the development of the future contributory population,

The model used was based on .a cohort approach using the flow method for generating fature.
generations of pensioners.on 4 single age basis, i.e. the identification.of each new pensioner and the
recording of the avérage period of past pension credits and the average earnings of each cohort; Future
new enirants were assumed to have the same average salary as the relevant cohort at the valuation

date but allowing for the rate of earnings inflation assumption.

The present valug of the liabilities was calculated by projecting cashflows over the whole lifetime of
the existing membership, i.e. effectively allowing for every exisiing member io die. For the yedr on
year income .and expenditure projection, only a snapshot of the cashflows over a projection peried of
50 years was 1llustrated.

The same -active member pensionable service proportions at the valuation date for the projection.
period ‘were used. Members- with more than 15 years' setvice were projected to receive pension

‘benefits; whereas members with less than 15 years® service were projected to receive lump sum

benefits, as per the rules of the Schems.

Active mémbers were grouped by age and sex based on who would receive pension and lump sum
benefits based on the June 2020 membership data taking into account the members' projected service
at retirement. We assumed that these groups would, apply to future new entrants during the projection
period. ‘

Each cohort of future new eiitrants was assumed to follow the same age, gender, 'salary and marital
status distribution of existing actives for the different.age groups. The distribution of new entrants by

age and sex would reflect that observed at the valuation date and it was assumed -that these.

distributions remain constant throughout the projection peried.

The Projected Unit Method has been used to calculate the future service contribution rate. This
caleulation draws on the samie assumptions. used for the technical provisions.

The Projected Unit Method (PUM) is one of the common methods used by actuaries to calculate a
contribution ‘rate for a funded scheme. This method calculates the present value of the benefits

) expe’ct_ed to accrue to members over a control period {often one year) following the valuation date.

The present value is usually expressed as a percentage of the members’ pensionable pay. It allows for

projected future increases to pay through to retirement or date of leaving service.
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Key assumptions made

= Margin for adverse experience

An allowance has been made for adverse experience in both the ﬁnan‘éial and: demographic-

assumptions used fo calculate technical provisions.

= Financial assumptions.

A summary of the key economic and expense ‘assumptions adopted for the valuation of the
Scheme as at 30 June 2020, together with the Jong-term assumptions adopted for the previous
valuation as at 30 June 2016 are shown below;

Valuation as at 30 June 2016

foture each vear

Key assumptions Yaluation as at 30 June 2020
Price inflation '10.0% p.a. for the first year; | 9.0% p.a. for the first year;
6.0% p.a. in the second year; | 7.0% p.a. in the second year;
5.0% p.a. in the third year and | 5.0% p.a. in the third year and
for'the rernainder of the for the remainder of the '
_ projection period. _ | projection period
Earnings inflation’ - | 12.0% p.a. for the first year; | 10.0% p.a. for the first year;
8.0% p.a. in the second year; | 8.0%7p.a. inthe second year;
7.0% p.a, in the third yearand | 6.0% p.a. in the third year and
| for the remainder of the. | for the remainder of the
_proiection period projection period
Investiient return 6.4%pa. 11.0% p.a. for the first year;
: 9.0% p.a. for the second year;
7.0% p.a. in the third year and
_for the remainder-of the
_ _ -projection-period
| Pensions increase 1.0%pa. . No allowance
‘Expenses 7% of contribution income 10% of contribution income
assumed to be fiinded in assumed to be funded in

future each year

The long-term economic assumptions adopted are the same for all future years of the projection.

" Demographics

A summary of the key demographic assumptions adopted for the valuation of the Scheme as at
30 June 2020, together with the long-term assumptions adopted for the previous valuation as at
30 June 2016 are shown below:;

Key assumptions

Valuation as at 30 June 2020

1 Valuation as at 30 June 2016

Labour Market
{Increase in Scheme-
membership)

Increase of 12% ini the first year of
the projections, reducing to a long-

| term assumption of 2,0% a year aver
-[~2.10-year period. and continuing at

2.0% p.a, for the remainder of the

1 projection period.

Increase of 10% in the first year of

* the projections, reducing to a long-

term-assumption of 2.5% a year

“over a 10-year period, and

continuing at 2:5% p.a. for the

‘remainder of the projection period..

Mortality assamptions.

Rwanda Mortality Table: 2012-2016
scaled by 60%; with an allowance for
future annual improvements of 0.8%
for males and 1% for females

' Rwanda Mortality Table; 2012-

2016; with-an allowance for fiture

~annual improvements of 1.25% for

males and 1.5% for females

W_ﬁhdrawal Rates -

Same as last valuation

"No allowance was made for early

| withdrawal from active service,

However,; an implicit allowance
was captured in the labour market
assumption.
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Valuation as at 30 June 2016

(Pension Branch and
Occupational Hazards
Bta'nch)

Key assumptions Valuation as at 30 June 2020
Invalidity Rates - A rate of 0.01% for active members A-rate of 0.01% for active members
(Pension Branch) between ages 20 and 64 between ages 20 and 60 _
Incapacity Rates "} Same as.last valuation ‘Permanent Incapacity Rate of
(Occupational Hazards - 0.005% for both males and females
Branch) “between the ages of 20 and 60,
Assimed that 5%.of future
-permanent incapacity will be full
‘incapacity. (based on 100%
Incapacity rate) arid 95% will be
| partial incapacity based on a 40%
. . _ tncapacity rate).
‘Workers Medical Benefits | An uplift of 30% to'the projected Anuplift of 33% to the projecied
(Occupational Hazards Permanent Incapacity expenditure in  Permanent Incapacity. expenditure
Branch)- | order to make an allowance for'the. in order to make an allowance for
_ _I Workers Medical Benefits, . the Workers Medical Benefits.
‘Constant Care Supplement | No allowance. ‘No allowance '

Retitement Rates

Same as last valuation

Non-Uniformed members retire at
- age 60 and that Uniformed
members retire at age 50,

‘No allowance has been made for
early retirements. as the experience

| indicated that few such benefits are

paid.

Family Statistics -
proportion married

' ?_5_% of male members and 6% 6f

female members are married at al]

‘ages

80%.of miale members and 65% of -

1 female members ate matried at all

ages.

Family Statistics - Age
difference

A 4-year age difference between

{ members and spouses has been

{ adopted, with husbands older than

. wives, with a 27-year age differefice
‘between male parents and children
-and a 23-year age difference between

female parents and children,

A 4-year age difference between
members and spouses has been
adopted, with husbands older than
. wives, with a .32-year'ag'e

1 difference between male parents

and children and a 28-year age
difference between female parents
and children,

Family Statistics —
Number of dependants

‘Same as last valuation

Unmarried members have two

- dependerits; that is, both parents,
-and that married members have
 three dependents; a spouse and two
dependent children,

We have not made any allowances

| for remarriage rates-and we have

assumed thiat orphan benefits cease

j atage 25,

* Deferred members

The previous valuation results did not allow for deferred members who left active employment
before July 1994, The previous actuary was provided with 641,018 deferred member records, of

which 208,754 last contributed before July

even those prior to 1994 have been included.

1994 At the valuation date, all the deferred members
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v Investment returns
I determining the investment return assumption, an allowarice for the benchmark allocation set out in

the Fund’s Investment Policy (third edition) and expected returns:on each asset class has been made.
‘A long term expected investment return of 6.4% per anntum was pbtained.

The previous valuation constructed the investmernt return assumption by adding a margin to the price
inflation assumption-whereby a long-term margin of plus 2.0% p.a. in addition to price inflation was
used to get an investment return assumption of 11% p.a. for the first year, 9% p.a. for the second year,.
7% p.a. in the third year and for the remainder of the projection period,

The net effective rate in service would be -0.6% in the Iong term which is lower than the previous
valuation,

= Earnings inflation

The previous valuation: assumed that the rate of earnings inflation to be 10.0% p-a. for the first year;
8.0% p.a. for the second year; 6.0% p.a. for the third year; and remaining at 6.0% p.a, for the
remaindet of ‘the projection period. This was equivalent to the price inflation assumption plus a 1.0%
p.a. margin,

The current valuation assumes that the tate of earnings inflation to be 12.0% p.a. for the first year;
8.0% p.a. for the second year; 7.0% p.a. for the third year; .and remaining at 7.0% p.a, for the
remainder of the projection period. This is equivalent t0 the price inflation assumption plus a 2.0%
p-a. margin. The higher margin was derived based on the data analysis.

= Pension increase
The current valuation makes an allowance of 1% per annum for any increases in benefit payments or

‘midimum pensions as such increases are provided on a discretionary. basis based on our analysis of

past.increases and following a request by RSSB.

The previous valuation did not 'inclutle..ahy-allowance for periodic increases to benefit payments,

% Expenses

The expense assumption is based on our findings from the Annual Report & Accounts ‘during the

inter-valuation period. The actuarial assumption is 7% p.a. of contribution income for the projection’
period. '

This compares to the previous actuarial valuation expense assumption of 10% a year of contribution

income for the projection period which reflected higher expenses recorded at that time.

= Labour market

The current valuation assumes that the active membership of the Scheme increases by 12% in the first
‘year reducing to a long term assumption of 2.0% over a 10-year period (i.. using a declining scale

from 12% to0 2% at the end of the 10 years); and continuing at 2.0% for the remainder of the
projection period. The long-term assumption reflects the combined effect of increases ifi the employed
population and inéreases in coverage that might be expected during the period.

The previous valuation assumed that the active membership of the Scheme increases by 10% in the.
first year reducing to a long-term assumption of 2.5% over a 10-year period; and continuing at 2.5%
for the remainder of the projection period.

The short-term assumptions adopted reflect the high numbers of new ‘entrants to the Scheme in recent
years. The long-term assumption reflects the combined effect of increases in the total population, total
employed population and increases in the coverage of the Scheme,

It is assumed that these high levels will not continue over the longer-tefm as Rwanda is the most

densely populated country in East Africa (and Aftica); and so it is likely that the population growth

will begin to plateau during the projection period. However, it is expected that the formal sector will

expand during the projection period; and therefore creating more gradual increase each year.,

133




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD.
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

" Mortality '
The current. valuation assumes mortality experience in line with the “Rwanda M'ortalit_y--Tab_le;
2012-2016" scaled by 60% with an allowance for future annual improverients of (0,8% for males
-and 1,.0% for females. A.60-year old male pensioner is assumed, on average, to live to-age 84.4
‘years-anid under a 60-year old female pensioner is assumed, ‘on average, to live to age 85.4 years.

‘The previous valuation asstmed mortality experience in line with the ‘Rwanda Mortality Table;
2012-2016 with an allowance for future annual improvements of 1.25%. for males and 1,5% for
females. The new Rwandg specific mortality table had been constructed using RSB data.

»  Tncapacity rates
The incapacity rates reflect the proportions of active, deferred and pensioner members who
become eligible to. (start to) receive Incapacity Benefits at each age as a result of ‘o¢cupational
disease or. accident. The valuation assumes.an Incapacity Rate of 0.06% for both males and
females between the ages of 20 and 60 based on a 10-year analysis. of annual claim’ payments.
The previous valuation assumed & permanent -incapacity rate of 0.005% for both males and
females between ages of 20 and 60. '

The difference comes from the fact that all ih¢apacity claims were considered instead-of focusing
only on permanent incapacity since the data was relatively scarce for such ‘benefits and unlikely
to be credible.

b) Medical scheme

Background and purpose of the actuarial valuation

‘The purpose of an actuarial valuation is to revi
RSSB therefore commissioned Zamara Actuari

Marnagement and directors have n.
2021 and believe the report for the
to support.a review of the long-term financial siistainability of
The core basis projections over the next 40 years from the valuation date, i.e. over the period 2020-

2021 t0 2039-2040 is as shown below:

period ended 30 June 2020

ew the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme,
es, Administrators arid Consultants Limited to conduct
-actuarial valuation of the medical benefits insurance scheme as at 30 June 2020. Zamara Actuaries,.

Administrators and Consultants I imited have issued an actuarial report dated 03 February 2021.

ot undertaken an actuarial assessment for the period ended 30 Jufie
provides reasonable actuarial valiiation
a scheme.

Fina_ncl_ia! year Totat Population Total Contribution | Total Benefit Accumulated
Size Income {Frw’ ‘Expenditure (Frw* Fund

millions) millions) | (Frw’ millions)

201072030 166,273 51,335 37,597 | T 506,035
2020/2021 171472 56,595 31,078 339,950
202172002 176,316 60,500 35,884 386,295
2033/2003 182,320 64550 31,550 434,383
202372024 188,051 68,740 48,260 483,445
202472025 193,966 73,086 | 56,221 532,403
2025/2026 200,144 77,584 65,714 579,781
2026/2027 206,496 82226 | 77.029 623,668
2027/2028 T 213156 86,980 |- 90,605 | 661.492
202872029 220,069 97,830 106,906 | 689,960
2029/2030 | 227317 96,742 | 126,569 704,788
2030/3031 234,863 101,692 150,317 700,537
203172032 283,703 106,660 179,056 670,323
2032/2033 250,829 111,622 | 213,898 605.471
203372034 259,352 116.480 256,327 494,559
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Financial year " ! Total Popuiation Size ! Total Contribution Total Benefit. Accumulated |
i Income (Frw® millions) | Expenditure (Frw’ Fumd |
1 illions) {Frw" millions)
2034/2035 } 268,258 ) 121,228 308,076 | 324,733
203572036 N AE 135,769 371,519 77,300
03672057 287483 1eler) T #90B T @enaED
2037/2038 N o 133,228 544469 | (691,770} |
2038/2039 ' 308,542 o 137973 | 661,589 (1,236,220)
[ 203972040 319,784 Ha 141350 | 805903 (1,922,116}

The projected-fund will be depleted by-30 June 2036 with the deficit growing exponentially until the end of
the projected period, ‘
For the first seven years of the projection period, anmyal contributions are expected to. exceed annual:

scheme. In the following vear eﬁdmg 30 June 2028, the total claims are projected to exceed total gross
contributions and the utilisation ratio.is 104.2% -
From the year ending 30 June 2028 to 30 June-2030, the projected investment income will be SUffiCiGIilf-tO‘
meet the shorifall caused by increasing claim costs as well as projected expenses of the scheme, *

Aﬁer the yeat ending 30 June 2030, net cashflows are projected to be negative. This differs from- the

Methodology and key assumptions used
Meﬂmdolqu

The projection model used considered the evolution of the contributing members; which forms the basis for -
projecting the future primary cashflows of the scheme. The primary cashflows were then used to-model the
future retained funds of the scheme, by considering projections of future investment refurns and expenses,

The membership of the scheme hias been segregated into employees from the public sector, employees from
the. private sector and retirees in assess; g the fiiture evolution of the scheme. The bases used for the
various projections have been arrived at-as a result of detailed analysis on data and experience over the past.
five years as this is most likely to reflect future experience, However, long term ‘expectations based on

‘regional and global _-beﬁciﬁnarking_ as well as macro-economic factors have been used in determining the,
Ainal set of assumptions for these projections.,

Key assumptions used
Below is.a summary of the key assumptions used in preparing these projections:
Demographics
Assumnption _ Value nsed in valuation as at 30 Jure 2020
' Membership prowth rate. N ' ' 2.60% _ . .
New entrants* propottion (per age) Based on data - distributing the now entrants in a given year into a
. Suitable age _ .
| Mqrt_ality'rate_s' o ) _ Rwanda Mortality Table - May 2017 .
R'etire_me’nt rateg . Stepped retirement rates for different age groups
Salary growth rate pablic L _15.90%: .
Salaty'gmw_th'rate private” ' _ 1440%
Pension growth rate ' o 7.20%
&quk_i“h_g_populaiﬁt_)n contribution rate’ — 15.0% of basic salary
Pensioners contribution rate- ' 7.5% of pension
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Economic

Assumption Value used in valnation as at 30 June 2020

Inflation | 10% in the first year, 6% in the second year and 5%

o | from year 3 onwards ' _

Investment rate of Teturn _ 8.9%

Other income ; 0.43_%'-0f_-‘:contfibutions

Administrative éxp'enses- ' ' 12% of contributions

Statutory CBHI contributions 1 10% of conmibution s o
Claims:

Asswinption _ _ { ___Velue used in valuation as at 30 Junie 2020 _
Cost Component ' | Annual Clatms escalation rate [ Average Cost per Affilinte
o _ . _ Member (Fr“_r) _

Consultation T 8% | 22367
.Labora_’toz_‘y_ tests” - _ _ ' 9-?%_ 36,620

Medical imaging . 21.1% 13,513
Hospitalization o _ ' 14.0% - 6,242
Proi:edures-and-_materi_als - 20.5% i 20,710

Other consumbles ' - 2.9% b 12,650
Medicines ' | - 10.8% 1 10,535
Pharmacy ' | 5.3% ' 40,171

54. Events after the reporting period

There are no reportabie stibsequent events:

55. Financial risk management

"The Board has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

a Market rigk,

*  Liquidity risk;_

. Credit risk, and

- Capital manageinent risk

Included below is information about the Board’s exposure 1o each of the above risks, the Board’s

objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing the risks and the Board’s management
of capital, '

Risk management framework

The Board’s Board of ‘Directors has overall r_espousibilit_y_ for the est'a_bli_s'hment-._and_ oversight of the
Board’s risk-management framework. The Board has established an Audit and Risk Committee, and
the Risk qua_rtment,__ which are responsible for dévelciping and monitoring the rigk management
policics in their specified areas. All Board committees. have non-execitive members and: report
regularly to the Board of Directors on theif activities, ' | o
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The Board's risk. management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
‘Board, to setappropriate risk limits and controls; and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,

products and services offered. The Board through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive conirol environment, in which all
employeesunderstand their roles and obligations.

The Board’s Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for momtormg compliance with the Board’s
risk management policies and procedures, and for feviewing the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Board, The Audit and Risk Committee is assisted in
these functions by Internal Audit and Risk functions.

Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and

_procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee

a) Market risk

Market risk is ‘the risk'that changes in market prices, such as investment prices, interest rates and
foreign exchange rates will affect the Board’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk. exposures
within the acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on investment..

Marnagement of market risks

Market risk arises from a decréase in the market value of a portfolio of financial instruments caused
by adverse movements in the market variables such as equity, bonds and property prices, eurrency
.exchange rates and inferest rates:

The Board grants authority to-take on market risk eéxposure to the Management Investment Committee
(MIC). This committee manages this risk through the guidelines set out in the Board’s investment
policy. '

Equity price risk

The Board is exposed to equity securities price risk through its investments in quoted and unquoted
shares. The Board’s Investment cominittee diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the guidelines set out in the Board's investment policy. All shares held by the
Board are either quoted on Rwanda Stock Exchange-and Nairobi Securities Exchanges or unguoted.

The table below shows the effect of share price sensitivity on the surplus for the year based on the
share price volatility as at 30 June 2022;

Type of Invesiment Ché:f;;n%hare Effect on surplus Eif:;]?l:

Pension Medical

2022 2022

Frw'millier * Frw'million

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss +/-9% 14,385 1,074

2021 2021

Frw Frw

Equity investments at fair value through profit.or loss +/-9% 8,273 253
Property price risk

“The Board is exposed to property price risk through its investments in real estate properties. The

Board’s Investment committee diversifies ifs portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Board’s investment policy. The Board undertook a
valuation -of 'its investment property during the year and adopied valuations of investment and
administrative properties.asat 30 June 2022,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirted)
The table below shows the effect of property price s_ensitivity-oﬂ the surplus for the year;
‘Change in

property price % Effect on surplus  Effect on surplus

Pension Medical

2022 2022

Frw’million Frw’million

Investment property +7-9% 19,357 1,128
2021 2021

Frw Frw

Investment property ' +-9% 18,801 1,142

Currency risk

The Board is exposed to currency risk' through tramsactions in foreign currencies. The Board
transactional exposures: give rise to foreign currency gains and losses that dre tecognised in the-
statement of compreliensive income. In respect of monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies,
the Board ensures that its net exposire 1s kept to an acceptable level. Monitoring of foreign currency
fluctuations is done through the Investment Committee. The Board operates wholly within Rwanda
and its assets and liabilities are reported in Rwanda Francs, although it maintains some of its assets
and trades with banks in foreign curencies.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
‘ ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- *!  FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2072

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

c) Credit risk :
Credit risk-is the risk of financial loss to the Board if a customier or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Board’s loans and advances, trade
_ and other receivables, deposits with commercial banks and investments in government and corporate bonds.
' For risk management reporting purposes, the Board considers. all elements of credit risk exposure such as

o individual obligator default risk, country and sector risk. .
For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on trading securities is managed independently, but
reported as a component of market risk exposure.

Management of credit risk
. ‘The Board of Directors has delegated responsxbﬂlty for the management of credit risk to its Managemernt
B Investment Committee, The Investments Department is responsible for oversight of the Board’s credit risk,
: ‘including:

*"‘\ . Formulating credit policies, covering collateral requirements-and credit assessments, risk grading and
' reporting. Documentary, legal procedures. and compliance with regulatory and statutory- reqmrements
is done in consultation with the Board’s Legal and Compliance Department.

- Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities. Authonsatlon
limits are allocated to the Management Investment Committee. Larger facilities require approval by

the Board of Directors as appropriate.

: " Reviewing compliance of investment mix with agreed exposure limits, including those for selected
1 industries, country risk and product types. The Board’s Investment Committee is responsible for
- L monitoriiig the credit quality of investments and ensuring that appropriate corrective action is taken
and providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best practice

throtighout the Board in the management of credit risk.

) _ The Investment department is required to implement the Board’s credit policies and procedures, with credit
] g approval authorities delegated from the Board’s Board of Directors. The Investment department is

+  -responsible for the quality and performance of the Board’s investment. portfoho and for monitoring. and

' controlling all credit risks in the Board’s portfolio, including those subject to. Board approval. Regular audits
of the Investmient department and the Board’s credit processes are undertaken by the Internal Audit

< department.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD.

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (con tinued)

d)  Capital risk management

The primary source of capital used by the Board is metber contributions and-income from investments.
For regulatory purposes, thé Medical division’s capital includes both Capital and retained eamings. By
the nature of its establishment, the medical division does not pay dividends. Its ¢quity is managed to
safeguard its ability to pay members medical benefits, Other objectives when managing its capital are: :

» " to comply with the capital requirements.as set'out in the Insurance Regulations;
a 1o comply with regulatory solvency requirements as set out in the Insurance Regulations; and

v ‘to safeguard the medical scheme’s ability to continue in operational continuity, so that it can
continue to pay benefits to its members. '

In 2008, Law No. 52/2008 governing thé organisation of insurance busincss in Rwanda (“the
Insurance L.aw”) was promulgated. The Insurance Law requires: entities providing short term
insurarice to hold a minimum level of paid up capital of Frw 1 billion. It also sets regulatory solvency
thresholds for insurance companies, based on prescribed admissibility criteria for assets and liabilities.
The regulatory solvency requirements were effective in.2011.

On 7 January 2019, Regulation N° 2310/2018 - 00014[614] Of 27/12/2018 Of The National Bank of :
Rwanda on Licensing Conditions for insurers And reinsurers was gazetted. Under aiticle 8 of the
regulation, the minimum paid -up capital for general insurance business was set at a mitiimum of Frw

3 billion.

The pension fund considers its reserves comprising of statutory reserves and accumulated members
fiinds as its “equity’. The primary objective in managing those reserves is to ensure that adequate ;
solvency is maintained for purposes of future benefit payments to members. The level of statutory
reserves is legislated as set out under Note 48. Other than for those reserves, the fund is not required

to meet any other external capital requirements. The fund carries out periodical actuarial assessments

to 855658 its actuarial solvency.
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